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2025
15,297,547.87 100.84
(127,928.67) (0.84)
15,169,619.20
3266 ) 100.00
2025
15,069,023.37 98.51
149,532.23 0.98
15,218,555.60 99.48
1,411,404.88 9.23
403.81 0.00
16,630,364.29 108.71
(1,332,816.42) (8.71)
15,297,547.87
C 3ot ) 100.00
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2025
Western Asset Bank Loan
1 | Master Fund (Multi- 1,155,403.92 12.214 14,112,490.14 13.240 15,297,547.87 | 100.84
Currency)
2025
cr77)
1 | CONNECT FINCO SARL 8268 | 2020/ /27 | 349,747.47 | 0.945 | 330,429.35 | 0.983 | 343,809.60 | 2.25
2 | skvinLes 1p L1 L0224 | 2027710720 | 254,218.75 | 1.004 | 255,343.95 | 1.006 | 255,824.14 | 1.67
3 | herT & HONDER INTL 5637 | 2020/ 714 | 196,013.77| 1.000 | 196,013.77 | 1.004 | 196,699.82 | 1.29
4 | sepewck cus e 3268 | 2031/ /31 | 194,109.21 | 0.984 | 191,108.22 | 1.002 | 194,657.52 | 1.27
5 | DoT A MEALTH HLOGS 5456 | 2031/ /30 | 188,575.00 | 0.996 | 187,770.17 | 1.004 | 189,400.96 | 1.24
6 | SHAIPIONS FINACING L0798 | 20207 7 198,000.00 | 0.973 | 192,675.43 | 0.933 | 184,679.55 | 1.21
7 | corvimi e .6250 | 2031/ 7/ 180,000.00 | 1.005 | 180,923.62 | 1.008 | 181,500.30 | 1.19
g | pALPINE CONSTRUCTION 3268 | 2030/ /31 | 180,000.00 | 0.995 | 179,050.37 | 1.002 | 180,333.90 | 1.18
g | Jpzs FINANCING LUX 5768 | 2028/ / 178,317.40 | 0.999 | 178,185.52 | 1.005 | 179,223.25 | 1.17
10| TENABLE InC 1913 | 20287 7 173,700.00 | 1.000 | 173,729.50 | 1.006 | 174,677.93 | 1.14
11| JUNE PURCHASER LLC 4666 | 2031711728 | 170,999.71 | 0.993 | 169,870.22 | 1.006 | 171,976.97 | 1.12
12 | ASSUREDPARTNERS INC 8268 | 2031/ /14 | 167,278.02| 0.999 | 167,105.84 | 1.003 | 167,808.20 | 1.10
13 | CAESARS ENTERTAIN INC 5768 | 20307 / 163,500.00 | 1.000 |  163,500.00 | 1.001 | 163,619.36 | 1.07
14 | VFH PARENT LLC 8268 | 2031/ /21 | 150,000.00 | 0.998 | 149,700.37 | 1.005 | 150,750.00 | 0.99
15 | SrctineE LAUNDRY 8268 | 2031/ /19 | 150,000.00 | 0.995 | 149,307.56 | 1.000 | 149,995.50 | 0.98
16 | UFC HOLDINGS LLC 5715 | 2031/11/21 | 149,250.00 | 0.999 | 149,079.70 | 1.004 | 149,836.55 | 0.98
17 | JEFFERIES FINANCE LLC 3215 | 2031710721 | 149,250.00 | 0.991 | 147,884.60 | 1.003 | 149,717.15 | 0.98
18 | MADISON SAFETY & FLOW 0768 | 2031/ /26 | 148,875.00 | 0.998 | 148,528.97 | 1.006 | 149,712.42 | 0.98
19 | ARDONAGH GROUP LTD 0364 | 2031/ /15 | 149,625.00 | 0.995 | 148,917.61 | 0.999 | 149,532.23 | 0.98
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c/’7 7))
20 | PRAIRIE ACQUIROR LP 3.7500 | 2029/10/ 148,130.64 | 0.985 | 145,910.08 | 1.000 | 149,403.82 | 0.98
21| EMRLD BORROWER LP 6.8268 | 2031/ / 148,875.00 | 0.998 | 148,507.29 | 1.002 | 149,154.14 | 0.98
22| opaL Us LLC 7.4352 | 2032/ 728 | 148,280.00 | 0.995 | 147,546.04 | 1.006 | 149,105.18 | 0.97
23 | ALPHA GENERATION LLC 6.3268 | 2031/ /30 | 148,875.00 | 0.998 | 148,508.22 | 1.000 | 148,865.32 | 0.97
24| ADVISOR GROUP 7.8268 | 2028/ s17 | 148,502.83 | 1.001 | 148,640.24 | 1.002 | 148,835.48 | 0.97
HOLDINGS |
25 | STARLIGHT PARENT LLC 8.2605 | 2032/ 716 | 150,000.00 | 0.971 | 145,608.50 | 0.990 | 148,500.00 | 0.97
26 | MEDLINE BORROWER LP 6.5768 | 2028710723 | 148,130.61 | 1.000 | 148,130.61 | 1.002 | 148,429.09 | 0.97
27 [ UNIVISION 7.9413 | 2029/ 731 | 148,500.00 | 0.992 | 147,336.73 | 0.998 | 148,222.31 | 0.97
COMMUNICATIONS . »500- : 336 : 1222 :
28 fﬁt's PAYMENTS BUYER 7.0768 | 2020/ s28 | 148,125.00 | 0.996 | 147,575.94 | 0.998 | 147,838.38 | 0.97
CLYDESDALE
29| Seooiatrion 7.5768 | 2032/ / 147,422.68 | 0.993 | 146,344.62 | 1.000 | 147,486.81 | 0.96
2025
c7’7 7))
BNY MELLON CASH
R 1.2000 | 2099712/ | 1,411,404.88 | 1.000 | 1,411,404.88 | 1.000 | 1,411,404.88 | 9.23
2025

2025

2025
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2025
2016 5,009,096.97 748,309 5.24 783
2017 6,452,737.43 963,974 6.32 944
2018 5,054,854.76 755,145 5.74 857
2019 3,655,149.47 546,043 4.43 662
2020 1,622,299.81 242,355 2.68 400
2021 1,333,087.84 199,150 2.35 351
2022 1,250,638.40 186,833 2.45 366
10 845,735.31 126,344 1.87 279
2023 T ’ ’
1 886,941.45 132,500 1.70 254
2024 T ’ )
12 353,951.98 52,877 1.23 184
2025 T ’ ’
2024 417,555.49 62,379 1.39 208
411,901.24 61,534 1.42 212
10 383,193.94 57,245 1.32 197
11 367,905.67 54,961 1.27 190
12 340,599.36 50,882 1.19 178
2025 356,877.43 53,314 1.24 185
348,454 .82 52,056 1.21 181
353,951.98 52,877 1.23 184
349,474 .85 52,208 1.21 181
346,740.07 51,799 1.20 179
360,520.77 53,858 1.24 185
348,305.53 52,033 1.20 179
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2016 72,217,688.22 10,788,600 8.27 1,235
2017 75,330,306.02 11,253,594 8.81 1,316
2018 52,612,781.90 7,859,823 8.54 1,276
2019 29,873,852.44 4,462,855 8.21 1,226
2020 19,030,750.96 2,843,004 6.98 1,043
2021 19,900,756.16 2,972,974 7.60 1,135
2022 32,058,059.42 4,789,153 7.39 1,104
10 12,508,790.09 1,868,688 6.72 1,004
2023 t 7 - E 7 - 7
11
2024 11,564,384.40 1,727,603 6.74 1,007
12 9,097,135.95 1,359,021 6.57 981
2025 T T ’
2024 10,192,278.88 1,522,625 6.65 993
10,176,340.27 1,520,243 6.63 990
10 10,198,018.02 1,523,482 6.64 992
11 9,461,904.45 1,413,514 6.65 993
12 9,334,030.06 1,394,411 6.64 992
2025 9,142,629.68 1,365,817 6.61 987
9,081,575.66 1,356,697 6.57 981
9,097,135.95 1,359,021 6.57 981
9,037,597.65 1,350,127 6.52 974
9,156,130.68 1,367,834 6.59 984
9,168,751.41 1,369,720 6.59 984
8,940,843.87 1,335,673 6.61 987
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2016 3,276,500,241 8,165

2017 2,624,491,704 8,580

2018 1,948,310,730 8,144

2019 1,481,747,818 7,593

2020 1,034,160,263 6,249

2021 1,025,607,811 6,720

2022 919,670,896 6,464

10 730,313,528 5,648
2023 T ’

1 548,537,056 5,281
2024 T ’

12 400,747,334 4,826
2025 7 ’

2024 520,365,094 5,061

516,497,722 5,021

10 514,647,731 5,000

11 514,104,439 4,992

12 495,364,284 4,947

2025 417,344,811 4,908

402,484,820 4,854

400,747,334 4,826

388,146,011 4,773

390,187,440 4,791

388,502,678 4,767

388,006,995 4,757
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2016 13,756,444.90 1,323,645 8.22 791

2017 18,102,438.42 1,741,817 8.60 827

2018 10,183,805.08 979,886 8.10 779

2019 8,517,667.66 819,570 7.54 725

2020 6,088,751.50 585,860 6.22 598

2021 6,049,445.65 582,078 6.72 647

2022 5,843,153.68 562,228 6.47 623

10 5,186,993.34 499,092 5.78 556
2023 T ’ ’

1 5,170,781.31 497,533 5.66 545
2024 T ’ ’

12 5,027,870.18 483,782 5.42 522
2025 T ’ ’

2024 5,018,727.30 482,902 5.53 532

5,023,276.14 483,340 5.51 530

10 5,046,147.45 485,540 5.51 530

11 5,079,780.27 488,776 5.52 531

12 5,092,133.82 489,965 5.50 529

2025 5,026,194.08 483,620 5.47 526

4,985,920.93 479,745 5.43 522

5,027,870.18 483,782 5.42 522

4,980,411.26 479,215 5.36 516

5,079,128.16 488,714 5.41 521

5,099,220.51 490,647 5.41 521

5,128,934_66 493,506 5.41 521
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111
108
108
102
72
72
72
72
58
54

0.74
0.72
0.72
0.68
0.48
0.48
0.48
0.48
0.39
0.36
0.03
0.03
0.03
0.03
0.03
0.03
0.03
0.03
0.03
0.03
0.03
0.03

10
11
12

2024

10
11
12

2025

7.49

2025

55
54
54
54
54
54
54
54
54
54

0.37
0.36
0.36
0.36
0.36
0.36
0.36
0.36
0.36
0.36
0.03
0.03
0.03
0.03
0.03
0.03
0.03
0.03
0.03
0.03
0.03
0.03

10
11
12

2024

10
11
12

2025

4.65

2025
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2024
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2025

30
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30

30

2025

4,650

.61 59

.60 58

.60 58

.56 54

.36 35

.36 35

.36 35

10

.36 35

11

.36 35

12

.36 35

2024

.03

.03

10
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11
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12

.03

2025
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DECOMRE (1 -y Beim. 2025 575FBRE)
BRTFSENALTFILRSE BHEFIGSR

BFT5 3 sREILIS 3

WBRUFE L LR 036
BoRIER BORSHEE 0.36
WI0SEEm 360 WI0SEHEE 0.36
BIAEHER 360 E1EEER 0.36
B12aEE 360 Bl2aktER 036
202538 30 202538 0.03
2025445 30 202548 0.03
2025458 30 2025558 0.03
2025%6H 30 2025%6H 0.03
2025578 30 2025%7H 003
ER1ERE 360 ER1ERET 0.36
HEREE 4,650 R 6.03

s BERERICE TR, SEROSBATLIRG, ErEsEErTihbNEL RS rEUET,

106/281



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000DO000DO00nnoE24736)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2015 2016 31 3.70
2016 2017 31 34.35
2017 2018 31 2.22
2018 2019 31 10.98
2019 2020 31 28.67
2020 2021 31 5-60
2021 2022 31 24.68
2022 P s 31 4.08
1 11.76
2023 2024 31
2024 P s 31 6.47
2015 2016 31 6.49
2016 2017 31 10.88
2017 2018 31 1.02
2018 2019 31 0.35
2019 2020 31 10.60
2020 2021 31 14.04
2021 2022 31 1.97
2022 P s 31 4.19
2023 ey 31 5-65
2024 P s 31 2.82
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2015 2016 31 7-08
2016 2017 31 9.49
2017 2018 31 0.89
2018 2019 31 2-35
2019 2020 31 12.96
2020 2021 31 13.30
2021 2022 31 1.55
2022 P s 31 7-05
2023 Y o 31 0.12
2024 2 s 31 1.80
2015 2016 31 5.16
2016 2017 31 11.92
2017 2018 31 1.16
2018 2019 31 0.00
2019 2020 31 12.73
2020 2021 31 13.83
2021 2022 31 1.64
2022 P s 31 5.10
2023 Y o 31 4.15
2024 2 s 31 2.12

100x
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164,027 2,421,272 956,547
(164,027) (2,421,272) (956,547)
233,560 168,903 1,021,204
(233,560) (168,903) (1,021,204)
38,397 179,321 880,280
(38,397) (179,321) (880, 280)
71,922 127,310 824,892
(71,922) (127,310) (824,892)
17,242 235,715 606,419
(17,242) (235,715) (606,419)
36,634 75,779 567,274
(36,634) (75,779) (567,274)
120,759 177,683 510,350
(120, 759) (177,683) (510, 350)
10 13,556 70,553 453,353
(13,556) (70,553) (453,353)
" 129,436 61,499 521,290
(129,436) (61,499) (521,290)
1 6,427 239,322 288,395
(6,427) (239, 322) (288, 395)
899,139 6,405,626 8,737,187
(899,139) (6,405, 626) (8,737,187)
2,841,276 3,016,257 8,562,206
(2,841,276) (3,016,257) (8,562,206)
563,405 2,967,862 6,157,749
(563,405) (2,967,862) (6,157,749)
33,269 2,583,143 3,607,875
(33,269) (2,583,143) (3.607,875)
35,639 916,518 2,726,996
(35, 639) (916,518) (2,726,996)
189,726 297,554 2,619,168
(189,726) (297,554) (2,619,168)
2,257,538 536,535 4,340,171
(2,257,538) (536,535) (4,340,171)
10 82,053 2,559,952 1,862,272
(82,053) (2,559,952) (1,862,272)
0 52,087 197,538 1,716,821
(52,087) (197,538) (1,716,821)
1 20,625 351,798 1,385,648
(20, 625) (351,798) (1,385,648)
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82,584 348,863 401,286
(82,584) (348,863) (401,286)
44,498 139,884 305,900
(44,498) (139, 884) (305,900)
11,604 78,257 239,247
(11,604) (78,257) (239,247)
2,897 46,990 195,154
(2,897) (46,990) (195,154)
8,172 37,821 165,505
(8,172) (37,821) (165,505)
7,317 20,197 152,625
(7.317) (20,197) (152,625)
12,987 23,341 142,271
(12,987) (23,341) (142,271)
10 638 13,505 129,314
(638) (13,595) (129,314)
N 681 26,120 103,875
(681) (26,120) (103,875)
1 690 21,525 83,040
(690) (21,525) (83,040)
155,844 284,770 1,673,599
(155,844) (284,770) (1,673,599)
749,339 316,925 2,106,013
(749,339) (316,925) (2,106,013)
39,469 888,217 1,257,265
(39,469) (888,217) (1,257,265)
2,876 130,195 1,129,946
(2,876) (130,195) (1,129,946)
2,090 152,947 979,089
(2,090) (152,947) (979,089)
31,737 109,988 900,838
(31,737) (109,988) (900, 838)
47,604 45,052 903,390
(47,604) (45,052) (903,390)
10 46,569 52,719 897,240
(46,569) (52,719) (897,240)
N 51,033 35,000 913,273
(51,033) (35,000) (913,273)
1 56,255 41,171 928,357
(56,255) (41,171) (928,357)
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2013 27
10.00
10.00
10,000
10.00
100.00 1 10 0.001
100.00 1 10 0.001
10,000 1 1 0.001
100.00 1 10 0.001
3.5
10,000

350

112/281



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000DO000DO00nnoE24736)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

EU EU
@) 1933 S
S A
(V)
Q)
(i)
(i) 31 (i)
3
1 6 1 183
© )
(nNeo@)
(V)
6%
Giii)
EU 27
EU

113/281



@)

(b)

©)

(D

©)

Q)
@

EDINETOOOO

OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000DO000DO00nnoE24736)

EU
EU
EU
(i) 183 EU
) EU

EU
(ii)(a) EU
)

EU

()
an @

114/281

Ooooooooooooooooooad

)
ID

EU

Gii)



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000DO000DO00nnoE24736)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

AML
AML
AML

BM&F

115/281



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000DO000DO00nnoE24736)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10 0.001 100
10 0.001 100
0.001 10,000
10 0.001 100

3.85 3.50
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2025 31
149.39
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2025 31
2025 31
1,155,404 15,302,869 2,286,096
8,096 8,200 1,225
31,318 4,679
28,719 4,290
15,371,106 2,296,290
31,883 4,763
30,337 4,532
1,777 265
1,597 239
36,118 5,396
101,712 15,195
15,269,394 2,281,095
3,134,210 928,357 3.376 504
354,075 /288,395 1.228 183
2,680,801 /83,040 32.283 4,823
9,100,308 /1,385,648 6.568 981
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2025 31

1,521,854 227,350
1,403 3,275 489
(358,543) (53,563)
1,166,586 174,276
137,011 20,468
71,000 10,607
36,099 5,393
10,001 1,494
8,563 1,279
14,501 2,166
277,175 41,407
889,411 132,869
(161,107) (24,068)
258 39
(487,107) (72,769)
(647,956) (96,798)
(165,111) (24,666)
438 65
93,899 14,028
(70,774) (10,573)
(718,730) (107,371)

170,681 25,498
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2025 31

889,411 132,869
(647,956) (96,798)
(70,774) (10,573)
170,681 25,498
(215,638) (32,214)
(124,978) (18,670)
(231,872) (34,639)
(546,189) (81,595)
(1,118,677) (167,119)
(3,168,409) (473,329)
(4,116,405) (614,950)
19,385,799 2,896,045

15,269,394 2,281,095
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2025 31
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28,719 - 28,719

1,777 - 1,777

2025 31
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2025 4 14 Goldman Sachs International BRL 46,962 USD 8,000 (176)
2025 4 14 UBS AG JPY 11,820,728 USD 80,000 829
2025 14 UBS AG JPY 7,504,845 USD 50,000 (264)
389
2025 4 14 UBS AG AUD 5,052,802 USD 3,140,685 8,324
2025 4 14 Goldman Sachs International BRL 2,123,171 USD 361,377 8,255
2025 4 14 UBS AG JPY 407,986,565 USD 2,721,230 11,311
2025 4 14 UBS AG JPY 10,251,843 USD 70,000 (1,337)
26,553
26,942
AUD
BRL
JPY
usb
7,500
10,000
10,000
0.80
0.05
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31
2025 31

56,255 202,038 6,427 8,675

(41,171) (146,966) (239,322) (366,235)

15,084 55,072 (232,895) (357,560)

690 22,673 20,625 136,837

(21,525) (681,602) (351,798)  (2,343,829)

(20,835) (658,929) (331,173)  (2,206,992)

83,997 370,223

(653,816)  (3,538,632)

(569,819)  (3,168,409)

2025 31

3.682 1.697 34.764 6.715
0.186 0.074 1.723 0.346
(0.257) (0.183) (1.844) (0.133)
(0.071) (0.109) (0.121) 0.213
(0.235) (0.360) (2.360) (0.360)
3.376 1.228 32.283 6.568
(1.93) (6.42) (0.35) 3.17
3.71 3.72 3.71 3.71
5.16 5.20 5.20 5.20
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2025 31
@
28,719
(@)
1,777
@
2025 31
(487,107)

93,899
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2025 31
) (3,381,526)
@) 10,025,014
@
@)
2025 31
28,719 1,777
28,719 1,777
(€h)
Goldman Sachs International (2 8,255 (176) 8,079
UBS AG(2) 20,464 (1,601) 18,863
28,719 1,777) 26,942
(¢D)
@
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2025 31
- 100.5% ~
- 0.5%
- 0.5%
Recycle and Resource Operations Pty Ltd. Initial U.S.
$ 94,555 Term 8.365-9.096% 2028 7 14 94,207 75,408
94,207 75,408
- 1.0%
- 1.0%
149,606 NorthRiver Midstream Finance LP First Lien Term 6.560-7.802 2030 8 16 149,254 149,066
149,254 149,066
- 0.3%
- 0.3%
34,364 Delta 2 Lux Sarl Initial Term B-1 6.299-6.604 2031 9 30 34,364 34,353
17,182 Delta 2 Lux Sarl Initial Term B-2 # 0.000 2031 9 10 17,182 17,177
51,546 51,530
51,546 51,530
- 0.6%
- 0.6%
90,000 Evertec Group LLC Term B 7.062-8.830 2030 10 30 88,689 90,450
88,689 90,450
- 2.4%
- 0.8%
116,144 Red SPV LLC Initial Term 6.575 2032 3 8 115,570 115,563
- 1.6%
250,000 Ardonagh Group Finco Pty Ltd. 2025 Facility Term B 7.289-7.329 2031 2 15 248,760 247,188
364,330 362,751
- 95.7%
- 1.5%
67,219 Transdigm Inc. Tranche J Term 6.799-7.843 2031 2 28 64,936 66,925
49,750 Transdigm Inc. Tranche L Term 6.799-7.320 2032 1 19 49,627 49,549
115,623 Vertex Aerospace Services Corp. 2023 Term 6.562-8.680 2030 12 6 115,255 114,178
229,818 230,652
- 0.4%
60,712 Delta Air Lines Inc. Initial Term 8.043-9.075 2027 10 20 60,946 61,406
- 0.9%
147,502 First Brands Group LLC 2022-1i Incremental Term 9.552-10.591 2027 3 30 146,336 137,453
- 7.T%
100,000 Armor Holdco Inc. Term B # 0.000 2028 12 11 99,500 99,500
Ascensus Group Holdings Inc. (f/k/a Mercury Borrower
108,495 Inc) 2024 Term B 7.312-7.444 2028 8 2 107,949 107,986
144,807 Citadel Securities LP 2024 Term Facility 6.325-6.718 2031 10 31 141,429 144,825
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Deerfield Dakota Holding LLC First Lien Initial Dollar

122,973 Term 8.049-9.085% 2027 4 9 122,074 116,991
99,750 Focus Financial Partners LLC Tranche B Incremental Term 7.074-7.075 2031 9 15 99,525 98,906
82,064 Jane Street Group LLC Extended Term 6.297-6.395 2031 12 15 81,639 81,192

149,625 Jefferies Finance LLC Initial Term 2024 7.302-7.759 2031 10 21 148,199 149,407
85,714 June Purchaser LLC Initial Term 7.467-7.823 2031 11 28 85,301 85,929

Osaic Holdings Inc. (f/k/a Advisor Group Holdings Inc)
148,877 Term B-4 7.812-8.089 2028 8 17 149,029 147,961
150,000 VFH Parent LLC Term B-2 6.814-6.825 2031 6 21 149,677 150,469
1,184,322 1,183,166
- 1.9%

58,477 Cornerstone Building Brands Inc. New Term B 7.656-8.687 2028 4 12 53,177 49,486
149,250 Madison Safety & Flow LLC 2025 Incremental Term B 7.072-7.075 2031 9 26 148,877 149,180
100,000 Quikrete Holdings Inc. Tranche B-3 Term 6.572-6.575 2032 2 10 100,249 99,003

302,303 297,669
- 0.5%
39,698 Viasat Inc. Initial Term B 8.917-9.437 2030 5 30 36,835 36,318
40,000 Virgin Media Bristol LLC Facility Q Advance 7.671-8.701 2029 1 31 39,274 39,282
76,109 75,600
- 2.8%

99,750 A-Ap Buyer Inc. Initial Term 7.062-7.354 2031 9 9 99,504 99,501
148,467 ARC Falcon I Inc. Initial Term 7.912-8.944 2028 9 30 148,152 146,891
149,625 Minerals Technologies Inc. Term B 6.311-6.589 2031 11 21 149,448 149,625

29,887 Paint Intermediate 111 LLC Initial Term B 7.302-7.818 2031 10 9 29,745 29,906

426,849 425,923
- 1.6%

150,000 Alliance Laundry Systems LLC Initial Term B 7.072-8.842 2031 8 19 149,277 149,639

99,500 Dynamo US Bidco Inc. Initial Term B 7.762-8.262 2031 10 1 99,025 99,718
248,302 249,357

- 3.3%
106,526 Allied Universal Holdco LLC Term 8.162-9.194 2028 5 12 106,526 106,535
178,235 GEO Group Inc. Term 9.560-10.594 2029 4 4 176,754 180,730
6,187 Groundworks LLC Delayed Draw Term ! 0.500-8.837 2031 3 14 6,184 6,071
209,556 Groundworks LLC Term 7.305-8.837 2031 3 6 207,742 205,627
497,206 498,963
- 2.0%

84,951 19th Holdings Golf LLC Initial Term 7.657-8.700 2029 2 7 84,734 83,110
148,280 Opal LLC Term B # 0.000 2032 3 31 147,538 148,095

69,475 Recess Holdings Inc Amendment No .5 Term 8.047 2030 2 20 70,084 69,605

302,356 300,810
- 6.3%

150,155 Chart Industries Inc. 2024 Term B 6.805-7.825 2030 3 15 146,761 150,405

150,000 Crown Equipment Corporation Initial Term 6.805-7.324 2031 10 10 149,264 149,781

149,250 EMRLD Borrower LP Second Amendment Incremental Term 6.799-7.843 2031 8 4 148,877 148,064

110,000 Madison IAQ LLC Initial Term # 0.000 2032 3 29 108,900 109,106

125,388 Mirion Technologies Inc. Term B 6.549-7.585 2028 10 20 124,868 125,270

150,000 Nvent Thermal LLC Initial Term B 7.810-7.825 2032 1 30 149,259 150,156
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132,525 SPX Flow Inc. 2024 Term B 7.312-7.477% 2029 4 5 126,843 132,432
954,772 965,214
-2.2%

149,250 Alpha Generation LLC Initial Term B 7.062-7.595 2031 9 30 148,844 149,483
80,000 Calpine Construction Finance Company LP Refinancing Term  6.312-7.580 2030 7 31 79,628 79,867
69,451 Lightning Power LLC Initial Term B 6.549-8.346 2031 8 18 68,664 69,151
40,000 Vistra Zero Operating Company LLC Initial Term 6.324-6.325 2031 4 30 39,007 38,713

336,143 337,214

- 1.6%
151,552 Allen Media LLC Term B 9.949-10.985 2027 2 10 151,025 88,507
149,625 UFC Holdings LLC Term B-4 6.580-6.770 2031 11 21 149,447 149,416
300,472 237,923

- 2.1%
91,430 Dispatch Acquisition Holdings LLC Amendment No 3 Term 9.074-10.110 2028 3 27 89,714 86,402
80,000 GFL Environmental Services Inc Initial Term 6.819 2032 2 4 80,107 79,400
164,475 LRS Holdings LLC Term B 8.676-9.708 2028 8 31 164,063 157,416
333,884 323,218

- 2.9%

117,551 AlixPartners LLP Initial Dollar Term 6.926-7.958 2028 2 4 117,643 117,624

149,625 Dragon Buyer Inc. Initial Term 7.299-7.854 2031 9 30 148,921 148,690
95,441 First Eagle Holdings Inc. Tranche B-2 Term 7.299-8.335 2029 3 5 94,297 95,535
82,982 Greystone Select Holdings LLC Initial Term 9.555-10.588 2028 6 16 82,017 82,982

442,878 444,831
- 2.3%

204,750 Five Star Lower Holdings LLC Initial Term 8.545-9.584 2029 5 4 203,400 201,269

100,206 Sycamore Buyer LLC Term B 6.669-7.714 2029 7 23 99,950 100,248
48,129 Triton Water Holdings Inc 2025 Refinancing Term 6.549-6.565 2028 3 31 46,615 47,990

349,965 349,507
- 4.9%
91,774 Alterra Mountain Co. Series B-6 Term 7.062-7.380 2028 8 17 91,331 91,774

164,000 Caesars Entertainment Inc. Term B 6.562-8.666 2030 2 6 164,000 163,317
98,477 Fertitta Entertainment LLC Initial B Term 7.812-9.087 2029 1 27 97,941 97,103

196,508 Light And Wonder International Inc. Term B-2 6.551-7.592 2029 4 14 196,507 196,277
99,250 PCI Gaming Authority Term B Facility 6.312-7.342 2031 7 18 99,109 98,430
98,628 Station Casinos LLC Term B Facility 6.312-7.594 2031 3 14 98,118 98,227

747,006 745,128

- 0.2%
93,304 Sonrava Health Holdings LLC Tranche A Facility 5.500-12.108 2028 8 18 93,010 35,514
- 6.7%

59,845 Aveanna Healthcare LLC Term B # 0.000 2028 7 17 58,598 58,835
43,055 EyeCare Partners LLC Tranche B Term 3.610-10.037 2028 11 30 43,055 33,922
98,458 Gainwell Acquisition Corp. Term B-1 8.399-9.435 2027 10 1 96,292 92,613
99,252 LifePoint Health Inc. Term B 8.052-8.406 2031 5 16 95,487 96,481

148,504 Medline Borrower LP Dollar Incremental Term 6.562-6.860 2028 10 23 148,504 148,390
10,504 MPH Acquisition Holdings LLC First Term 8.037 2030 12 31 9,980 10,427
87,077 MPH Acquisition Holdings LLC Second Out Term 9.149 2030 12 31 82,728 71,875
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$ 118,082 Phoenix Guarantor Inc. Tranche B-5 Term 6.812-6.952% 2031 2 21 117,650 117,753
60,987 Precision Medicine Group LLC Initial Term 7.399-8.435 2027 11 18 60,941 60,491
189,050 Sotera Health Holdings LLC 2024 Refinancing Term 7.549-8.594 2031 5 30 188,207 188,932
149,625 Team Public Choices LLC Initial Term B 9.541-10.502 2027 12 20 146,632 146,258
1,048,074 1,025,977
- 0.9%

33,484 Adtalem Global Education Inc. 2024 Repricing Term 7.062-8.060 2028 8 12 33,182 33,533
97,827 Belfor Holdings Inc. Tranche B-3 7.324-7.325 2030 11 1 98,071 97,827
131,253 131,360

- 5.1%

57,389 AP Core Holdings Il LLC Term B-1 9.926-10.958 2027 9 1 51,680 52,347

40,000 AP Core Holdings Il LLC Term B-2 9.926-10.958 2027 9 1 35,615 36,255

78,536 CB Poly US Holdings Inc. Initial Term 9.799-10.835 2029 5 18 75,757 74,536
147,814 E.W. Scripps Company Tranche B-3 Term 7.426-8.458 2028 1 7 141,999 131,424

99,250 Gray Television Inc. Term F 9.559-10.593 2029 6 4 95,746 96,273

99,838 MH Sub 1 LLC 2023 May New Term # 0.000 2028 5 3 96,968 95,096

77,803 Nexstar Broadcasting Inc. Term B-4 6.926-7.958 2026 9 18 77,472 77,842

70,000 Plano HoldCo Inc. Initial Term B 7.799-8.092 2031 10 2 69,668 69,825

Univision Communications Inc. 2024 Replacement First-
148,875 Lien Term 7.926-8.958 2029 1 31 147,614 145,246
792,519 778,844
- 0.6%
92,788 Oxbow Carbon LLC Tranche B Term 7.812-9.43 2030 5 10 92,971 92,788
-2.2%

44,502 M6 ETX Holdings Il Midco LLC Term B # 0.000 2032 4 1 44,279 44,460
149,625 NGP XI Midstream Holdings LLC Term B-2 7.799-9.285 2031 7 25 148,151 149,251
148,504 Prairie ECI Acquiror LP Term B-3 8.562-8.616 2029 8 1 146,304 148,852

338,734 342,563
- 1.6%
245,704 Clydesdale Acquisition Holdings Inc. Term B # 0.000 2032 3 29 243,862 244,630
- 0.5%
79,035 Jazz Financing Lux Sarl Tranche B-2 Dollar Facility 6.562-7.594 2028 5 5 79,134 79,094
- 5.5%

83,712 Acrisure LLC 2024 Repricing Term B-6 7.312-7.357 2030 11 6 83,874 83,338

99,750 AmWINS Group Inc. Initial Term 6.574-6.575 2032 1 30 99,502 99,072
167,702 AssuredPartners Inc. 2024 Term 7.812-8.844 2031 2 14 167,520 168,087
105,857 Asurion LLC New B-10 Term 8.412-9.444 2028 8 19 102,748 104,923

60,000 Asurion LLC New B-4 Term 9.676-10.708 2029 1 20 59,685 55,791
150,000 Asurion LLC Second Lien Term B-3 9.676-10.708 2028 1 31 150,333 142,500
194,688 Sedgwick Claims Management Services Inc. 2023 Term 7.312-9.094 2031 7 31 191,454 194,278

855,116 847,989
- 0.6%
90,000 NA Rail Hold Co LLC 1St Lien Term B 7.286 2032 2 27 89,775 90,225
- 1.5%
58,496 Blackstone Mortgage Trust Inc. Term B-4 7.810-8.847 2029 5 9 57,369 58,387
60,000 KREF Holdings X LLC Initial Term 7.571 2032 2 25 59,929 59,775
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107,535 Starwood Property Mortgage LLC Term B 6.562-6.607% 2027 11 18 104,496 107,535
221,794 225,697
- 6.7%
90,938 ALCV Purchaser Inc. Initial Term 11.189-12.208 2026 4 15 90,664 82,753
198,500 Champions Financing Inc. Initial Term 9.072-9.852 2029 2 6 192,744 179,435
97,793 Driven Holdings LLC Term 7.426-8.458 2028 12 15 97,531 97,732
149,250 Harbor Freight Tools USA Inc. Initial Term 6.812-7.844 2031 6 11 148,908 145,791
39,825 Lids Holdings Inc. Term B 9.945-10.994 2026 12 14 39,545 39,626
45,145 Rent-A-Center Inc. Term B-2 7.041-9.119 2028 2 17 45,160 45,095
248,750 Spencer Spirit IH LLC Initial Term 9.057-10.829 2031 7 15 246,924 251,238
80,000 Valvoline Inc. Term B # 0.000 2032 3 19 79,600 80,050
98,805 Wand NewCo 3 Inc. Tranche B-2 Term 6.824-7.074 2031 1 30 98,189 97,484
1,039,265 1,019,204
- 16.1%
169,575 Amentum Holdings Inc. Initial Term B 6.562-7.105 2031 9 29 168,291 164,329
99,750 Boost Newco Borrower LLC Term B-2 6.291-6.299 2031 1 31 99,893 99,220
145,500 Cloudera Inc. Second Lien Initial Term 8.162-9.194 2028 10 8 145,200 143,795
84,557 Coherent Corp. (f/k/a 11-VI Incorporated) Term B-2 6.312-6.337 2029 7 2 83,125 84,548
180,000 Cotiviti Inc. Initial Fixed Rate Term 7.625 2031 5 1 180,966 177,525
38,805 Cotiviti Inc. Initial Floating Rate Term 7.059-8.593 2031 5 1 38,600 38,029
129,143 DCert Buyer Inc. First Lien Initial Term 8.312-9.344 2026 10 16 129,113 125,930
249,375 Indy Us Bidco LLC Eleventh Amendment Term 7.805-7.825 2028 3 6 248,779 248,876
Javelin Buyer Inc. (f/k/a S2P Acquisition Borrower Inc)
150,000 Term 7.563-7.694 2031 12 5 149,638 149,475
116,144 Kaseya Inc. Term B # 0.000 2032 3 22 115,563 115,927
100,000 Leia Finco US LLC 7.535-7.887 2031 10 9 99,500 99,141
249,375 Modena Buyer LLC Initial Term 8.791-9.832 2031 7 1 244,785 242,023
98,744 Neptune Bidco US Inc. Term B 9.389-10.423 2029 4 11 90,850 85,398
75,326 Planview Parent Inc. 2024-B Incremental Term 7.799-7.870 2027 12 17 74,086 74,667
Project Alpha Intermediate Holding Inc. Incremental
99,003 First Lien Term B 7.549-7.771 2030 10 28 97,500 98,899
150,000 Starlight Parent LLC Initial Term # 0.000 2032 4 30 145,500 145,876
174,150 Tenable Inc. Initial Term 7.176-8.208 2028 7 7 174,183 174,585
54,841 UST Global Inc. Initial Term 7.302-8.947 2028 11 20 54,582 55,081
148,500 Zelis Cost Management Buyer Inc. Term B-2 7.062-8.094 2029 9 28 147,912 147,758
2,488,066 2,471,082
- 0.6%
87,063 ABG Intermediate Holdings 2 LLC 2024-1 Refinancing Term 6.560-6.575 2028 12 21 87,062 86,262
- 1.4%
186,220 Brown Group Holding LLC Incremental Term B-2 Facility 6.791-8.347 2031 7 1 182,420 185,319
34,011 KKR Apple Bidco LLC Term 6.820-6.825 2031 9 23 32,454 33,804
214,874 219,123
- 0.6%

100,000 Zayo Group Holdings Inc. Initial Dollar Term 7.426-8.458 2027 3 9 90,851 93,322
14,846,027 14,647,708

15,594,053 15,376,913
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- 0.0%
- 0.0%
- 0.0%
40,381 EveryWare Global Inc. 411,514 404
411,514 404
411,514 404
ETF - 1.9%

- 1.9%
14,000 Invesco Senior Loan ETF 294,840 289,800
294,840 289,800
ETF 294,840 289,800
- 102.4% 16,300,407 15,667,117
- -2.4% (364,248)
- 100.0% 15,302,869

ETF ETF

~ 2025 31
# 2025 31

146/281



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000DO000DO00nnoE24736)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-Currency) Fund
(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)

Statement of Assets and Liabilities
March 31, 2025

Assels

Investments in 1, 155,404 units of Master Fund, st fair value

Foreign currency, at fair value (cost 58.096)
Receivable for units sold of the Master Fund
Unrealized gain on forward foreign currency contracts

Total asselz

Liabilities

Accmed transfer agent fee

Accrued distribator fees

Unrealized loss on forward foreign currency coniracts
Accrued management fees

Accrued expenses

Total liabilities
Met gssets attmbutable to redeemable umtholders

AUD Class

£3,134 210/928,357 umts
BRL Class
£354,075/288.395 units
JPY Class
$2.680,801/83,040 units
USD Class

55 100 308/1,385,648 wnls

b 15,302,869
§.200

31318

28,719

15,371,106

31,883
30,337
1,777
1.587
36,118

101,712
3 15,269,394

The accompanying nokes are an integral part of these financial saements.

3
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Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)

Statement of Operations
Year Ended March 31, 2025

Net investment income all ocated from Master Fund
Interest
Dividends (net of forgign tax withholdings $1.403)
Expenses

et investment income allocated from M aster Fund
Expenses
Distributor fees
Administrative, accounting, and transfer agent
Professonal
Custody
Agent company fees
Oither

Total expenses

Net investment income

MNet realized amd unrealized gain (loss) on investments allocated from Master
Fund, foreign currency translation/transactions and derivative coniracts

Met realized gain {loss)
Allocated from Master Fund
Foreign cumency translationfransactions
Forward foreign currency confracts

Met realized (loss)
Met change in unrealized gain (loss)
Allocated from Master Fund
Foreign currency translationtransactions
Forward foreign currency contracts

Met change in unrealized gain (loss)

et realized and wnrealized gain (loss) on investments allocated from Master

Fund, foreign cumency translationtransactions and derivative contracts
WNet increase in net assets resulting from operations

b 1521854
3,275

(358,543)
1,166,586

137,011
T1000
35,099
10,001

8,563
14,501

(161,107}
258
{487,107}

(647.956)

(165,111}
438
93,8599

(70,774)

(T18.730)
5 170,681

The accompanying nokes are an integral part of these financial saements.

4
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Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)

Statement of Changes in Net Assets
Year Ended March 31, 2025

From operations

Met investment income

Met realized (loss)

Net change in unrealized gain {loss)

Met inerease i net assels resulting from opérations

From distributions to unitholders
AUD Class

BRL Class

JPY Class

USD Class

Total distrbuiions

From partid pant transactions

Met (decrease) in net assets resulting from partici pant transactions (Note 6}
Med (decrease) in net assets

MNet assels

Beginning of year

End of year

5 389411
(647,956)
(70,774}

170,681

(215.638)
(124.978)
(231.872)
(546,189)

(1,115677)

(3,168,409)
(4,116,405)

19,385,799
3 15,269,394

The accompanying nokes are an integral part of these financial saements.

5
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Western Asset Bank Loan {Multl-Currency] Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Motes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2025

L Organization and Investment Objective

Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-Currency) Fund (the “Fond™ ) was formed on Febmary 8 2013 as
a sub-trust of the Western Asset Offshore Funds ("Trost™), a unit trust established by a tmst deed
under the Trusts Act {as amended) of the Cayman [slands and registered under the Mutual Funds Act
of the Cayman Islands. The Trest is strectured as an umbrella wnat trust, which allows it (o create
multiple sub4msts, with the aim of segregating assets and liabilities of each sub-trust. As of March
31, 2025, there were § sub-trnsts of Western Asset Offshore Funds, Western Asset Management
Company Lirmited (“WAMCL" } 35 the Trost's Manager, Western Asset Management Company, LLC
{WAM™), Western Asset Mamagement Company Pte, Lid, (“Western Asset Singapore”™), Western
Asset Management Company Lid (" Westem Asset Tokyo™) and Westem Asset Management Compary
Pty. Ltd. (" Westem Asset Melbowne™) are the sub-investment managers to the Fund (collectively
the “Investment Manager” ). BNY Mellon Fund Management {Cayman} Limited is administrator
and Trustee 1o the Fund, The Bank of New York Mellon, a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Bank
of Mew York Mellon Corporation, is the custodian and sub-admanistrator to the Fund. The Bank of
New York Mellon (Singapare Branch) is the registrar and transfer agent to the Fund. Mitsubishi UFJ
Morgan Stanley Securities Co., Ltd. (Japan) and SMBC Nikko Secunties Inc. are distributors to the
Fund. Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities Co., Ltd. {(Japan) is Agent Company.

The Fund invests substantially all of its assets in the Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-Currency )
Master Fund {the “Master Fund” ). The Master Fund is organized as a separate sub-mst of the Trust
ani is a separate investment company with investment objectives that are consistent with those of the
Fund. The Fund intends to achieve ils investment objective by investing in the Master Fund, whach,
in tum, makes investments on behalf of the Fund, Therefore, the Fund's interest in the securities
amd ofher investments owned by the Master Fund is indirect. In such an arangement, the Fund is
referred to as a “Feeder Fund”.

The investment objective of the Master Fund is to provide long<erm total retum through a diversified
port folio consisting substantially of bank lean instroments, designed to control and restrict overall
portfolio msk, The Master Fund shall invest approximately %0% of its net assets in fixed income
securities, including bank leans and inflation linked securities, that are rated Bal or BB+ or lower
by a nationally recognized rating agency such as Moody s Investors Service, Inc., Standard & Poor’s
Ratings Services, or Fitch, Inc. or that are of comparabde quality as determined by the Investment
Manager or WAMCL,

The accounting policies of the Master Fund, such as the valuation of the Master Fuml's invesiments,
will directly affect the value of the Fund's interest in the Master Fund, and thos the net asséts of the
Fund. The financial statements and accompanying footnotes of the Master Fund are attached and
should be read in conjunction with the Fund's financial atements, The percentage of the Master
Fund owned by the Fund at March 31, 2025 was 1002,

With regand 1o an investment by the Fund in its corresponding Master Fund, the determination of the
net assel value of the Master Fund and redemption of interests in the Master Fund may be subject to
suspensions, iFf among other reasons, it is not reasonably practicable for the Investment Manager to
fairly determine the value of the Master Fund's net assets, In the event of such a suspension by the
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Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust}
MNotes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2025

L Organization and Investment Objective (Continued)

Master Fund, the Investment Manager will suspend calculations of the net asset value of the Fund
that imvests in such Master Fund, as well as suspend issuances and redemptions of units of the Fund,
including redemption orders that were placed prior to such suspension. but which have not been
seftled. There were no such occurrences during the year ended March 31, 2025,

At March 31, 2025, the Fund had two unaffiliated unitholders who individually held more than 10%
of the Fund's units outstanding. The percentage of aggregate ownership was 100%%. The Fund may
be materially impacted by the actions of ong or more of these unitholders.

2, Summary of Significant Accounting Polides

Basis of Accounting

In conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of Amenca (U5,
GAAP”), the Fund uses the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, income and expenses are
recorded as eamed and incumed, respectively.

The Fund is an investment company which follows accounting and reponting guidance in the
Financial Accownting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification 946, Financial Services
— Investment Companies.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with .5, GAAP, requires management (o
meake estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities. disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of increases and decreases in net assets from operations during the reporting period. Actual results
conld differ from those estinal s,

Forelgn Currency
Foreign currency consists of foreign currency on depost with financial institulions.

Investment Transactions, Investment Income and Expenses
Investments made into the Master Fund and redemptions from the Master Fund are recorded on
trade date.

The Fund’s net invesiment income or loss consists of the Fund's pro rata share ofthe net investment
income or loss of the Master Fund, less the Fumd's feeder specific actual and accrsed expenses
determined in accordance with 1.5, GAAP.

Functional and Presentation Currency

Items included in the Fumd’s financial statements are measured using the cumency of the primary
economic environment in which it operates, The majonity of issnances. redemptions, and vahiations
of the units are effected and denominated in the U5, Dollars (*USD™).
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Western Asset Bank Loan {MultI-C urr EI‘IC}'] Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements {Continued)

March 31, 2025

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Polides (Continued)

Income Taxes

According to the current laws of the Cayman [slands, there 18 no income, estate, corporation, capital
gains or other taxes payable by the Fund. As a result, no provision for income taxes has been made
in the financial statements.

The Fumd intends to conduct its affairs so that it will not be deemed 1o be engaged intrade or business
inthe U5, and, therefore, none of its income will be treaed as “effectively connected” witha 1.5
trade or bisiness camied on by the Fund. Effectively coninected income is subject to U5, federal
income tax af the graduated rates applicable to U8, domestic corporations. Certain categories of
income that are not “effectively connected™ but are derived from U.S. sources, including dividends
and interest income, are subject to a U5, tax of thirty percent. However, under the portfolic interest
exemption, the thirty percent tax does not apply to pori folio interest eamed. For the year ended March
31, 2025, interest eamed by the Fund qualifies under the portfolio interest exemplion.

The Fund is subject to the anthoritative guidance with respect to accounting for and disclosure of
uneertainly in tax positions, which requires the Fund 1o determine whether a tax position is more
likely than not to be sustained upon examination. Management has analyzed the Fund’s tax positions
for all open tax years and has concluded that as of March 31, 2025, there are no uncemain tax
positions that would require financial statement recognition or disclosure. The Fund's policy is to
recogmize intered and pemalties, ifany, related o uncertain tax positions as a component of incore
tax expense, For the vear ended March 31, 2025, the Fund did not recognize any interest or penalties
for uncertain tax positions, There are curmrently no examinations being conducted of the Fund by the
Internal Revenue Service or any other taxing anthority,

Issnances and Redemptions of Units of Participation

Fund units are issued in multiple classes (each a“Class” and, collectively, the “Classes”). The Fund
currently offers an Australian Dollar * AUL™} Class, Brazilian Real ("BRL") Class, Japanese Yen
("JPY™) Class, and Umnited States Dollar ("USD™) Class (each Class. except the USD Class, is a
“Hedeged Class™). The Fumd seeks to hedge the USD cwrrency exposire through the use of forward
contracts of the BRL Class to the BRL, the AUD Class to the AUD and the JPY Class to the JPY. The
denomination currency for units of the BRL Class and USD Class are USD, AUD for the AUD Class,
and JPY for the JPY Class (each a " Denomination Cumrency™ }in which issuances, redemptions, and
valuation of units are effected and in which units are denominated.

The net asset value of each Class 15 determuned in the Denomination Currency on the relevant
“Dealing Day™. A Dealing Day is every business day on which federal, gate or local banks are open
fior business in New Yok, London, Japan and the Cayman Islands and the New York Stock Exchange
and London Stock Exchange are open for trading, Issuances and redemptions of Fund units are
mrade on such days, based upon the closing net asset value. A sales charge of up to 3.5% of the net
assel value may be charged. and retained. by the Distnbutor, The sales charge is charged outside the
Fund by the Distributor,
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Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Motes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2025

2. Summary of Sigoificant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Issnances and Redemptions of Units of Participation (Continued)

The Trustee, in consultation with the Investment Manager, may temporanly suspend the determination
of the net asset value of the Fund, and the issuance and redemption of the Fund’s units, and may
postpone the date of payment of redemption proceeds if, among other reasons. during any period
when it is not reasonably practicable for the Investment Manager to fairly determine the value of the
Fund's net assets. There were no such occurrences during the year ended March 31, 2025,

Allocation of Incone, Expenses, Galns, and Losses

Income, expenses, and realized and unrealized gains and losszes are allocated on a daily basis to
each Class of units based upon the relative portion of net assets of each Class. The Fund will apply
adjustments to the valuation of its Classes in order 1o specifically credit or charge to the relevant
Class of wnits any applicable gains, losses and expenses generated by hedging transactions with
respect o such Classes (eg. all costs associated with hedging transactions relating to the JPY
Class of units are bome by the JPY Class of units). All Classes of units will bear ratably any gains,
losses and expenses generated by hedging non-USD denominated investments to the functional
CUITENCY.

Distributions to Unitholders

Dristribmions from net investment incorme, net reatized or unrealized gains and'or capital are declared
by the Fund by the fifteenth {1 5th) day of each month. Distributions are paid in cash or in-kind, as
miay be detenmined by the Investment Manager, unless the unitholders elect to reinvest in additional
units, Cash distributions with respect to a Class are paid in the Class Denomination Currency.

3 Valuation

The Fund's investment in the Master Fund is valued st the net asset value per share on the valuation
date as determined by the Master Fund, The Fund receives a daily allocation of the Master Fund’s
income, expenses, and net realized and unrealized gains and losses in propoion Lo its investment
in the Master Fund.

Owver-the-counter financial derivative instruments, such as forward foreign currency contracts,
options contracts, swaptions contracts, or swap agreements, derive their value from underlying asset
prices, indices. reference rates, and other inputs or a combination of these factors. These contracts
are pormally valued on the basis of pricing service providers or broker dealer quotations, Depending
on the product and the terms of the transaction, the value of financial derivative instruments can be
estimated by 2 pricing service provider using a series of techniques, including simulation pricing
miodels. The pricing models use inputs that are observed from actively quoted markets such as issuer
details, indices, spreads, interest rates, yield curves, and exchange rates.

The vanons inputs that are used in determining the fair value of the Fund's assets and liabilities are
sumimanzed into the broad levels lised below:

s Level 1 —quoted prices in active markets for idemtical investments
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Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-<Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Motes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2025

L Valuation {Continued)

& Level 2 - other significant observable inputs (including quoted prices for similar investment s,
interest rates, prepayment speeds, credit risk. etc.)

& Level 3 —sigmfcant unobservable inputs, meluding the Invesment Mamsger's own assimiplions
in determining the fair value of investments. Level 3 far value techmigques include
(1) the nze of propretary models that require the use of judgment and the application
of various assumptions including, but not limited to, prepayment assumplions and
defaull rate assumptions, and (i) the solicitation of valuations from third panies
(tvpically, broker-dealers), Thard-party valuation providers often ntilize propretary
moddels that are subjective and also requare the use of judgment and the application
of vanous assumptions including, but not limated to, prepayment assumptions and
default rate assumptions

The valuation levels are not necessanly an indication of the nisk or liquidity associated with investing
in those securities,

The following is a summary of the levels within the valwation hierarchy used in valuing the Fund's
assets mnd labilities carmed 8 far value:

Assels
Other
Signifcant Significant
Quoted Observable Unohservable
Prices Inputs Inputs
Deseription {Level 1) {Level 1) {Level 3) Total
Forward Foreign Cumency
Contracts b — & BNY § — £ 28,719
Liabilitles
Oiher
Slgnifcant Significant
Quoted Ohservable Unohservahle
Prices Inputs Inputs
Description {Level 1) (Level 2) {Level 3) Total
Forward Foreign Cumency
Contracts 3 — 3 1777 & — 2 1.777
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Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Motes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2025

4 Forward Forelgn Currency Confracts

The Fumd may enter into a forward foreign currency contract to hedge azainst foreign cumency
exchange rate risk on its non-USD denominated securities and units or to facilitate settlement of
a foreign cumency denominated portfolio transaction. A forward foreign cumency contract is an
agreement between two parties to buy and sell a curmency at a set price with delivery and settlement
at a future date. The contract is marked to market daily and the change in value is recorded by the
Fund as an unrealized gain or loss, When a forward foreign cumency contract is closed, through
either delivery of the currencies or offset by entering into another forwarnd foreign currency contract,
the Fund recognizes a realized gain or loss equal to the difference between the valwe of the contract
at the time it was opened and the value of the contract at the time it is closed.

Forward foreign currency contracts imvolve elements of market nisk in excess of the amounts reflected
on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities. The Fund bears the risk of an unfavorable change in the
foreign exchange rate underdving the forward foreign emrrency contract. Risks may also arise upon
entering into these contracts from the potential inability of the counterparties to meet the terms
of their contracts. The following table presents the open forward foreign curmency contracts as of

March 31, 2025:
SETTLEMENT CONTRACTS IN EXCHANGE  UNREALIZED

DATE COUNTERFARTY IO DELIVER FOR AN (OGS

Agpr.14-2005 Fabirran Sacke Enlamnatnoeal ERL 45262 1ED 2000 % (7€)

Apr-14-2025 UBS AG FTr 11 5mr28 D 20,000 a2

Apr-14-T023 UES AG T T M85 1BD 20:000 264

3
SETTLEMENT CONTRACTS IN EXCHANGE  UNREALIZED

DATE COUNTERFARTY 1o RECETVE FOR AT (TOREY

Agre14-2025 UES AC MU 506802 - 1ED 3, 0 5ET £324

Apr-14-1025 Goldman Sachs Internadional BRL 31801 ED 361,317 B1S

Apr-14-2025 UBS AG YT 407 s ss  1ED 2121230 11,311

Apr.14-2025 UBS AZ Y 10,251 543 1D TO000 {1,337}

26,553

T otalNet Unrealized Calnon Forward Forelgn Currency Contract 3 e v

Currency Legend

AUD - Australisn Dellr

BERL Brazilian Res

JFY x I'l;plr:r.ﬂr Yen

UED = TE Dwllar
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Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
MNotes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2025

-} Charges and Fees

Investment Manager Fee
Irvestment Manager's fee is charged to the Master Fund for the services provided 1o the Master Fund
and Fund.

Trustee Fee
The Fumnd is charged an annual fee of 7,500, which is accmed daily and payable quarterly in arrears.

Administrator Fee
The Fund is chargedan annual fee of 510,000 and an additional 310,000 anmually for each additional
Class in excess of the first three Classes.

Distributor Fee
The Distributor fee is accried daily and payable quarterly in arrears at an annual rate of 0,80% of
the average daily net assets of the Fund.

Agent Company Fee
The Agent Company fee is accroed daily and pavable quarterly in arrears at an anmal rate of 0.05%
of the average daily net assets of the Fund.

6, Units of Particpation

The following represents the Fund's unit activity for the year ended March 31, 2025:

Year Ended March 31, 2025
AU EEL
— Units __ Amownt __ Unite _ Amowd
Urnils issed 55255 0§ 202038 6427 § E6TS
i redeemed (41.171) {1406, 24) (259, 322) (366,235)
Met increase {decrease) 15084 % 35072 (232.895) § (357 S60)
Py USD
1its Admount Limits Armount
Unils issmed 60 % 21673 625 3 136,537
Units redesmed (21.518) (681.602) (51, T08R) (2. 33,827
Net (decrease) (20.B3%) % (65BS19) @37y 1 (2.6
Lot
LUinits Ammount
Undts i smed ey 8 ERFFE]
Units redeemed (653,816} {3,538, 632)
Net {decreass) (569819 5 (3165409)
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Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Motes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2025

7. Finandal Highlights
Year Ended March 31, 2025

Selected Per Unit Data AUD BRL JPY UsD
Met asset vahe, beginning of vear b3 3682 S 1697 & 34764 S 6.715
Met investment income! ! 0,186 0074 1.723 0346
Met realized and unrealized gain (loss) (0.25T) (0.183) (1.844) (0.133)
Total inceme (bos=) from investment op erations (0.071) (108 (0.121) 0.213
Distributions to unitholders (0.235) {1 3640) {23600 {03600
Wet asset vabue, end of year 3 3376 5 1228 § 32383 3 6,568
Taotal retm %4~ (1.93) (6:42) (0.35) 317
Hatios to Average Nel Assels
Expenses %o an 372 £ | L |
Met mvestment moome % 516 520 520 520

W Net investment income per unit has been caloulated based upon average umnits outstanding for the year.

= Total return calculation is based on the value of & single unit of participati on cutstanding throughout the year.
1t represents the percentage cange in the net asset value per unit between the beginoing and end of the vear,
excludng distributions bo unithalders,

The above ratios are calculated for the participating unite as a whole. An individoal unitholder's total
retim and ratios may vary from these ratios based on the iming of capital it transactions.

The above ratio and per unit data includes the Fund’s pro rala allocations of income, expenses, and
realized and unrealized gain or loss from the Master Fund,

& Derivative [Instruments

The Fund may transact in a variety of derivainve instruments including forwards for trading parposes
with each instrument’s primary nsk exposure being foreign exchange nsk, The fair value of these
derivative instruments is included as a separate line item within the Statement of Assets and
Liahilities by contract type.

The following tables provide information abent the fair values and the location of derivatives
not accounted for as hedging instruments which are included within the Statement of Assets and
Liabilities at March 31, 2025 and are grouped by derivative type:

Al
Dierivatives!
Foreign
Exchange
Risk
Forwird Foreign Curnency Conirads E: IS
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Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
MNotes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2025

8 Derivative Instruments {Continuedy

Liability
Derivatives?
Forelgn
Exchange

Risk
Forward F-:rmgn li'l.l::n'l.-'.:,.'li‘-:ﬂr.'l.ds = 1,177

) Ferward foreign currency contracts are diown & separste line items of e Statement of Assets and Liabalities.

The following tables provide information about the effect of derivatives within the Fund's Statement
of Operations for the year ended March 31, 2023, The first table provides additional detail about
the amommts and sources of gains or losses realized on derivatives during the vear, The second
table provides additional anformation about the change in unrealized gain (loss) resulting from the
Fund's denvatives during the vear, The realized and nnrealized gains and losses from denvatives are
presented as separate line items on the Siatement of Operations.

Amount of
Realized
{Loss) an
Derivatives
Recognized
Foreign
Exchange

Risk
Forward Foreygn Cumansy Conlrads 9 HE7,107)

Change in
Unrealized
{Loss) on
Derivatives
Recognized
Forelzn
Exchange

Risk
Foarward Foregn Currendy Contradts 3 03 500
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Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Motes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2025

8 Derivative Instruments {Continuedy
During the vear ended March 31, 2025, the volume of derivatives activity for the Fund was as

foll ows:
Mamihily
Avermge
—Vahes
Forward Currency Contracts o Drelivart™ $ (3,381 524y
Forward Curpency Contrects bo Recene™ 10025, 004

® This amound, converted to presentational currency where applicable, comesponds to the representative average
pavable value o seitlement chite bazed on the monthly activity of the Fund

@ T amoun, corverted o presentations]l arrency where applicable, comesponds o the representative average
receivabde value al seltlement date based on the monthly activity of the Fund,

@ OIfselting Assels and Liabilities

By using derivative instrument s, the Fund is exposed to the counterparty s credit risk, the risk that
derivative counterparties may not perform in accordance with the contractual provisions offset by
the value of any collateral received. The Fund®s exposure to credit risk associated with counterparty
non-performance is limited to the unrealized gains inherent in such transactions that are recogmized
within the Statement of Assets and Liabilities. The Fund mummizes counterparty credit nsk through
credit limits and approvals, credit monitoring procedures, executing master netting arrangements,
and managing margin and collateral requirements, as appropriate. The Fund records counterpanty
credit nsk valuation adjustments, 1 material, on certain derivative assets in onder Lo appropnately
reflect the credit quality of the counterparty. These adjustments are also recorded on the market
quotes received from counterpanies or other market pamicipanis since these quotes may not fully
reflect the credit nisk of the counterparties to the derivative Instnuments,

For financial reporting purposes, the Fund does not offeet derivative assets and liabilities that
are subject (o netting arrangements within the Staement of Assets and Liabilities. Information is
presented below for all derivative assets and liabilities that are subject to an enforceable Master
Metting Agreemernt (“MNA™).

Offsetting Derivative Assets and Liabilities at March 31, 2025

Amounts Presented in the
Statement ol Assels and Liabilities

Assrls Liabilities
Forward Foreign Currency Contracis b4 8719 % 1,777
Total derivative assets arud liabilities m the
Staternent of Assets & Liabilities subject to a MNA 3 28719 § 1,777
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Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements {Continued)

March 31, 2025

9, Offsetting Assets and Liabilides (Contnoned)
Derivative Assets and Collateral Recelved
Gross
Amounts of
Assels
Presented In
the Statement
of Assets and Financial Cash Received
—Liabilities  __ Instroment  __as Collateral = Net Amount'™
Goldman Sachs
Intemational™ g #8255 & (176) § — 5 8070
UBS AGH 20,464 (1,601) — 188063
Total g 28719 § (777 % — 5 24,842

M Wel amount represents the net amount recedvable from the counterparty in the event of default.
@ Ower the Counter.

Derivative Liabilities and Collateral Pledged

Gross
Amounts of
Linbilities
Presented in
the Stat et
of Assets and Financial Cash Pledged
Liabilitjes It uirvessi a5 Collateral Mt Armount™
Goldman Sachs
Intermatiomal™ ] 176 % {176 § — ¥ —
URS AGH 1,601 {1,601) — —
Total s L7TT % {1,777] & — & =

1 MNet amount represents the nel amount payabie due to the counterparty in the event of defaull.
@ Cwer the Connler,
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Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust}
Motes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2025

10, Fund Investment Risks

Hedgine Transactions Risk

Hedging strategies in general are usvally intended to limit or reduce investment risk, but can also be
expected 10 limit or reduce the potential for profit, Notwithstanding the foregoing. to the extent that
assets of the Fund attnbutable 1o a paticular Class of units are insufficient o satisfy the labilities
associaled with a hedging transaction with respect to such Class of units, such amount of the
liabilities that exceed such assets may be borne by the other Classes of units of the Fund.

Interest Rale Risk

Interest rate risk is the nsk that fived income securties will decline in value because of changes
in interest rates. As nominal interest rates rise, the value of certain fixed income securities held by
the Fund is likely to decrease. A nominal interest rate can be described as the sum of a real interest
rae and an expected inflation rate. Fixed income securities with longer durations tend 1o be more
sensitive to changes in interest rates, usually making them more volatile than securities with shoner
durations. Duration is used primarily as a measure of the sensitivity of a fixed income”s market price
to interest rate (i.e., vield) movements,

Denvative Instruments Risk

The Fund may invest in vanous derivatives which may present additional nsks and costs that are
different from and, in certaun cases, greater than the sks and costs presented by investing directly in
securities and other more traditional investments, Following are additional risk factors conceming
the use of derivatives:

e  Managenrent Risk: Derivative products are specialized instruments that require investment
techniques and risk analvees different from those associated with stocks and bonds. The
successful use of dervatives requires sophisticated management and an understanding not only
of the undedying instrument b alzo of the derivative itzelf. In panticalar, the use and complexity
of derivatives require the mamtenance of adequate contrals to monitor the transactions entered
into, and the ability to assess the rick that a derivative adds to the Fund's pont falio.

®  Conmierparty Credit Risk: The use of denvatives subjects the Fund to the risk that the counterparty
will not be able or willing to make timely settlement payments or otherwise meet its obligations,
especially during wnuseally adverse market conditions, If the counterpany defanlis, the Fund
will have contracinal remedies, but the Fund may be unable to enforce its contractual rights,
Counterparty risk is more pronounced if a counterparty's obligations exceed the amount of
collateral held by the Fund (if any), the Fund is unable to exercize il interest in collateral upon
default by the counterparty, or the termination value of the instrument varies significantly from
the marked=to-market value of the instrument.
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Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
MNotes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2025

10. Fund Investment Risks (Continued)

Demvative Instruments Risk (Contimied

®  Documentaiion Risk: Many derivative instruments have documentation risk. Because the
contract for each over-the-counter derivative transaction is mdividually negotiated with a specific
counterpany, there exists the risk that the paries may imterpret contractual terms & fferently.
If that occurs, the cost and unpredictability of the legal proceedings required for the Fund to
enforce ite contractual Aghts may lead the Fund to decide not to pursue its claims against the
counterpany. The Fund, therefore, assumes the risk that it may be unable to obtain payments the
Investment Manager believes are owed to them under derivatives instmument s or those payments
may be delayed or made only afler the Fund has incurred the costs of itigation.

Risk Associated with Investment in the Master Fund

The Fund, through itz investment in the Master Fund. is exposed to varous types of risks. As the
Fund's assets are imvested in the Master Fund, they are primarily exposed (o the nisks faced by the
Master Fund. A summary of nisks is discussed in the Master Fund’s financial statements, which ane
attached and should be read in conjunction with the Fund’s financial statements.

11. Contingendes and Commitments

In the normal course of business, the Fund enters into contracts that contain a variety of representations
and warranties, which provide general indemnifications. The Fund's maximum exposure under these
amangements is unknown, as this would imvolve future claims that may be made against the Fumd
that have not yet occwrred. Based on experience, management is of the view that the risk of loss
in connection with these potential indemmification obbigations 15 remote; however, there can be no
assurance that material labilities refated to such obligations will not arise in the future that could
adversely impact the business of the Fund

12, Subsequent Events

As of May 22, 2025, the date the financial statements were available 1o be issued, no subsequent
events or transactions had oceurred that wonld heve matenally impacted the financial statements as
presented.
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2024 31
2024 31
1,547,594 10,528,465 2,917,357
30,044 4,488
23,496 3,510
11,116 1,661
19,593,121 2.927.016
78,073 11,663
18,332 2,739
39,007 5,827
27.742 4,144
44,168 6,598
207,322 30,972
19,385,799 2,896,045
3,362,454 913,273 3.682 550
884,375 /521,290 1.697 254
3,611,120 /103,875 34.764 5,193

11,527,850 /1,716,821 6.715 1,003
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2024 31

1,977,041 295,350
(620,208) (92,653)
1,356,833 202,697
161,578 24,138
104,699 15,641
39,798 5,945
13,000 1,942
18,931 2,828
338,006 50,495
1,018,827 152,203
(1,097,752) (163,993)
(241) (36)
(876,489) (130,939)
(1,974,482) (294,968)
1,135,483 169,630
® (€H)
(20,928) (3,126)
1,114,546 166,502
(859,936) (128, 466)

158,891 23,737

164/281



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000DO000DO00nnoE24736)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2024
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1,018,827 152,203
(1,974,482) (294,968)
1,114,546 166,502

158,891 23,737
(212,533) (31,750)
(198,534) (29, 659)
(274,244) (40,969)
(629,991) (94,114)

(1,315,302) (196,493)
(1,781,600) (266,153)
(2,938,011) (438,909)
22,323,810 3,334,954
19,385,799 2,896,045
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2024 UBS AG AUD 5,186,869 USD 3,380,272 (4,031)
2024 Goldman Sachs International BRL 4,510,365 USD 904,606 3,892
2024 UBS AG JPY 548,891,597 USD 3,626,326 (2,647)
(2,786)
2024 UBS AG AUD 5,186,869 USD 3,411,040 (26,737)
2024 UBS AG AUD 5,186,869 USD 3,383,462 4,053
2024 Goldman Sachs International BRL 4,510,365 USD 902,243 (1,529)
2024 Goldman Sachs International BRL 4,510,365 USD 902,082 (3,938)
2024 UBS AG JPY 560,991,821 USD 3,748,163 (39,191)
2024 UBS AG JPY 548,891,597 USD 3,644,481 3,171
(64,171)
(66,957)

AUD

BRL

JPY

usb

7,500
10,000
10,000
0.80
0.05
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2024 31

51,033 191,424 129,436 242,948

(35,000) (137,066) (61,499) (109,233)

16,033 54,358 67,937 133,715

681 25,573 52,087 348,672

(26,120)  (1,020,511) (197,538)  (1,323,407)

(25,439) (994,938) (145, 451) (974,735)

233,237 808,617

(320,157)  (2,590,217)

(86,920)  (1,781,600)

2024 31

3.873 1.866 42.449 6.719
0.189 0.092 1.918 0.339
(0.142) 0.129 (7.104) 0.017
0.047 0.221 (5.186) 0.356
(0.238) (0.390) (2.499) (0.360)
3.682 1.697 34.764 6.715
1.21 11.84 (12.22) 5.30
4.74 4.74 4.75 4.74
5.04 5.05 5.04 5.04
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2024 31
(@)
11,116
@)
78,073
@
2024 31
(876,489)

(20,928)
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2024 31
w (8,044,768)
@) 16,367,427
@
@)
2024 31
11,116 78,073
11,116 78,073
(€h)
Goldman Sachs International (2 3,892 (3,892)
UBS AG() 7,224 (7,224)
11,116 (11,116)
(¢D)
@
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@
Goldman Sachs International(® 5,467 (3,892) 1,575
UBS AG(® 72,606 (7,224) 65,382
78,073 (11,116) 66,957
@
@

10
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Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-Currency) Fund
(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)

Statement of Assets and Liabilities
March 31, 2024

Assels

Investments in 1,547,594 units of Master Fund, at fair valne

Receivable for units sold of the Master Fund

Receivable for investments sold

Unrealized gain on forward foreign currency contracts
Total assets

Liabilities

Unrealized loss on forward foreign currency contracts
Payable for imvestments purchased

Accrued distributor fees

Accrued transfer agent fee

Accrued expenses

Total liabilities
Met assets attributable to redeemable unitholders

AUD Class
$3,362,454/913,273 units
BEL Class
$884,375/521,290 units
JEY Class
53,611,120¢103,875 units
USD Class
$11,527.850/1,716,821 units

3 19,528 465
30,044

23,496

1L116

19,593,121

78,073
18,332
9,007
27,742
44,168

207,322
$ 19,385,799

I |,

§ L6

5 34.764

$ 6.715

The accrmpanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

3
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Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Statement of Operations

Year Ended March 31, 2024

Net investment income allocated from Master Fond

Interest 5 1,977,041
Expenses (620,208)
Net investment income allocated from Master Fund 1,356,833
Expenses
Distributor fees 161,578
Administrative, accounting, and transfer agent 104,659
Professional 39,798
Custody 13,000
Other ) 13,_91_!1
Total expenses ) 338,006
Wet investment income 1,018,827

Net realized and unrealized gain (Joss) om imvestments allocated from Master
Fund, forelgn currency translation/transactions and derivative contracts

Met realized (loss)
Allocated from Master Fund (1,097,752)
Foreign currency translationtransactions (241)
Forward forsign currency contracts (876,489)
Net realized (loss) (1,974,482)
Net change in unrealized gain (loss)
Allocated from Master Fund 1,135483
Foreign currency translation/transactions (9
Forward foreign currency contracts (20,928)
Net change in unrealized gain (loss) 1,114,546
Net realized and unrealized gain (loss) on investments allocated from Master
Fund, foreign currency wanslation/transactions and derivative contracts (859,936)
Net increase i net assets resulting from operations 5 158,891

The accmpanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
4
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Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended March 31, 2024

From operations

NMet investment income £ 1,018,827

Net realized (loss) (1,974,482)

Net change in unrealized gain {loss) 1,114,546
Met increase in net assets resulting from operations 15?-_.39‘1

From distributions to unitholders

AUD Class (212,533)

BRL Class (198,534)

JPY Class (274, 244)

USD Class (€29.991)
Total distributions (1,315,302)

From participant transactions

Net (decrease) in net assets resulting from participant transactions (Note 6) (1,781,600)
Met (decrease) in net assets (2,938,011)

Net assets

Beginning of year 23,323 810

End of year 5 19385799

The accmpanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
5
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Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2024

1. Organization and Investment Objective

Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-Currency) Fund (the “Fund™) was formed on February 8, 2013 as
a sub-trnst of the Western Asset Offshore Funds (“Trust”), a unit trust established by a trust deed
under the Trusts Act (as amended) of the Cayman [slands and registered under the Mutual Funds Act
of the Cayman Islands. The Trust is structured as an umbrella unit trust, which allows it to create
multiple sub-trusts, with the aim of segregating assets and liabilities of each sub-trust. As of March
31, 2024, there were & sub-trusts of Western Asset Offshore Funds, Western Asset Management
Company Limited (*“WAMCL") is the Trust's Manager. Western Asset Management Company, LLC
(“WAM™), Western Asset Management Company Pte. Ltd. (“Western Asset Singapore™), Westemn
Asset Management Company Ltd. (“Western Asset Tokyo™) and Western Asset Management Company
Pty. Ltd. (“Western Asset Melbourne™) are the sub-investiment managers to the Fund (collsctively
the “Investment Manager™). BNY Mellon Fund Management (Cayman) Limited is administrator
and Trustee to the Fund. The Bank of New York Mellon, a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Bank
of New York Mellon Corporation, is the custodian and sub-admindstrator to the Fund. The Bank of
New York Mellon (Singapore Branch) is the registrar and transfer agent to the Fund. Mitsubistu TUFJ
Morgan Stanley Securities Co., Ltd. (Japan) and SMBC Nikko Securities Ine. are distributors to the
Fund. Mitsubishi UF] Morgan Stanley Securities Co., Ltd. (Japan) is Agent Compamy.

The Fund imvests substantially all of its assets in the Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-Currency)
Master Fund (the “Master Fund™). The Master Fund is organized as a separate sub-trust of the Trust
and is a separate investment company with investment objectives that are consistent with those of the
Fund. The Fund imtends to achieve its investment objective by investing in the Master Fund, which,
in turn, makes investments on behalf of the Fund. Therefore, the Fund's interest in the securities
and other investments owned by the Master Fund is indirect. In such an arrangement, the Fund is
referred to as a “Feeder Fund”®.

The imvestment objective of the Master Fund is to provide long-term total return through a diversified
portfolio consisting substantially of bank loan instruments, designed to control and restrict overall
portfolio risk. The Master Fund shall invest approximately 90% of its net assets in fixed income
securities, inchoding bank loans and inflation linked securities, that are rated Bal or BB+ or lower
by a nationally recognized rating agency such as Moody's Investors Service, Inc., Standard & Poor’s
Ratings Services, or Fitch, Inc. or that are of comparahle quality as determined by the Investment
Manager or WAMCL.

The accounting policies of the Master Fund, such as the valuation of the Master Fund's investments,
will directly affiect the value of the Fund's interest in the Master Fund, and thus the net assets of the
Fund. The financial statements and accompanying footnotes of the Master Fund are attached and
gshould be read in conjunction with the Fund's financial statemnents. The percentage of the Master
Fund cwned by the Fund at March 31, 2024 was 100%.

With regard to an imvestment by the Fond in its corresponding Master Fund, the determination of the
net asset value of the Master Fund and redemption of interests in the Master Fund may be subject to
suspensions, if among other reasons, it is not reasonably practicable for the Investment Manager to
fairly determine the value of the Master Fund's net assets. In the event of such & suspension by the
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Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continuad)

March 31, 2024

1. Organization and Investment Objective (Continoed)

Master Fund, the Investment Manager will suspend calculations of the net asset value of the Fund
that imvests in such Master Fond, as well as suspend issuances and redemptions of units of the Fund,
including redemption orders that were placed prior to such suspension, but which have not been
settled. There were no such occurrences during the year ended March 31, 2024,

At March 31, 2024, the Fund had two unaffiliated unitholders who individually beld more than 10%6
of the Fund’s units outstanding. The percentage of aggregate ownership was 100%. The Fund may
be materialty impacted by the actions of one or more of these unitholders.

2. Summary of Significant Acconnting Policics

Basls of Accounting

In conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of Amenica (18,
GAAP™), the Fund uscs the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, income and expenscs arc
recorded as earned and incurred, respectively.

The Fund is an investment company which follows accounting and reporting guidance in the
Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification 946, Financial Services
— Investment Companies.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with U.S. GAAF, requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure
of contingent assets and Habilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of increases and decreases in net assets from operations during the reporting pericd. Actual results

Imvestment Transactions, Invesiment [ncome and Expenses
Investments made into the Master Fund and redemptions from the Master Fund are recorded on
trade date.

The Fund's net investment income or logs consists of the Fund's pro rata share of the net investment
income or loss of the Master Fund, less the Fund’s feeder specific actual and accrued expenses
determined in accordance with US. GAAP

Functional and Presentation Curreacy

Items incloded in the Fund’s financial statements are measured uging the currency of the primary
economic environment in which it operates. The majority of issuances, redemptions, and valuations
of the units are cffected and denominated in the U.S. Dollars (“USD™).

Income Taxes

According to the current laws of the Cayman Islands, there is no incoms, estate, corporation, capital
gaing or other taxes payable by the Fund. As a result, no provision for income taxes has been made
in the financial stetements.
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Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continuad)

March 31, 2024

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policics (Continued)

Income Taxes (Continued)

The Fund intends to conduct its affairs so that it will not be deemed to be engaped in trade or business
in the U.S. and, therefore, none of its income will be treated as “effectively connected” with a LS.
trade or business carried on by the Fund. Effectively connected income is subject to ULS. federal
income tax at the graduated rates applicable to U.S. domestic corporations. Certain categories of
income that are not “effectively connected™ but are derived from US. sources, inchuding dividends
and interest income, are subject o a 1.8, tax of thirty percent. However, under the portfolio interest
exemption, the thirty percent tax docs not apply to portfolio interest carned. For the year ended
March 31, 2024, interest earned by the Fund qualifies under the portfolio interest exemption.

The Fund is subject to the authoritative guidance with respect to accounting for and disclosure of
uncertainty in tax positions, which requires the Fund to determine whether a tax position is more
likely than not to be sustained upon examination. Management has apalyzed the Fund's tax positions
for all open tax years and has concluded that as of March 31, 2024, there are no uncertain tax
positions that would require financial staterment recognition or disclosure. The Fund'’s policy is to
recognize interest and penalties, if any, related to uncertain tax positions as a component of income
tax expense. For the year ended March 31, 2024, the Fund did not recognize any interest or penalties
for uncertain tax positions. There are currently no examinations being conducted of the Fund by the
Internal Revenue Service or any other taxing authority.

Issnances and Redemptions of Units of Participation

Fund units are issued in multiple classes (each a “Class” and, collectively, the “Classes™). The Fund
currently offers an Australian Dollar {“AUD™) Class, Brazilian Real (“BRL") Class, Japanese Yen
(“JPY™} Class, and United States Dollar {“USD™) Class (each Class, except the USD Class, is a
“Hedged Class™). The Fund seeks to hedge the USD currency exposure through the use of forward
contracts of the BRL Class to the BRL, the AUD Class to the AUD and the JFY Class to the JPY. The
denomination currency for units of the BRL Class and USD Class are USD, AUD for the AUD Class,
and JPY for the JPY Class (each a “Denomination Currency™) in which issuances, redemptions, and
valuation of units are effected and in which units are denominated.

The net asset value of cach Class is determined in the Denomination Currency on the relevant
“Dealing Day”. A Dealing Day is every business day on which federal, state or local banks are
open for business in New York, Londom, Japan and the Cayman Islands and the New York Stock
Exchange, London Stock Exchange and Tokyo Stock Exchange are open for trading. Tssuances and
redemptions of Fund units are made on such days, based upon the closing net asset value, A sales
charge of up to 3.5% of the net asset value may be charged, and retained, by the Distributor, The sales
charge is charged outside the Fund by the Distributor.

The Trustee, in consultation with the Investment Manager, may temporarily suspend the determination
of the net assct valoe of the Fund, and the issuance and redemption of the Fund's units, and may
postpone the date of payment of redemption proceeds if, among other reasons, during any period
when it is not reasonably practicable for the Investment Manager to fairly determine the value of the
Fund’s net assets. There were 0o such occurrences during the year ended March 31, 2024,
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(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
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March 31, 2024

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policics (Continued)

Alloeation of Income, Expenses, Gains, and Losses

Income, expenses, and realized and unrealized gains and losses are allocated on a daily basis to
each Class of units based upon the relative portion of net assets of each Class. The Fund will apply
adjustments to the valuation of its Classes in order to specifically credit or charge to the relevant
Class of units any applicable gains, losses and expenses generated by hedging transactions with
respect to such Classes (e.g., all costs associated with hedping transactions relating to the JPY
Class of units are borne by the JPY Class of units). All Classes of units will bear ratably any gains,
losses and expenses generated by hedging non-USD dencminated investments to the functiomal

currency,

Distributions to Unitholders

Distributions from net investment income, net realized or unrealized gains and/or capital are declared
by the Fund by the fifteenth (15th) day of each month. Distributions are paid in cash or in-kind, as
may be determined by the Investment Manager, unless the unitholders elect to reinvest in additional
units. Cash distributions with respect to a Class are paid in the Class Denomination Currency.

3. Yaluation

The Fund's investment in the Master Fund is valoed at the net asset value per share on the valuation
date as determined by the Master Fund. The Fund receives a daily allocation of the Master Fund's
income, cxpenses, and net realized and unrealized gaing and losses in proportion to its investment
in the Master Fund.

Ovwer-the-counter financial derivative instruments, such as forward foreign currency contracts,
options contracts, swaptions contracts, or swap agreements, derive their value from underlying asset
prices, indices, reference rates, and other inputs or a combination of these factors. These contracts
are normally valued on the basis of pricing service providers or broker dealer quotations, Depending
on the product and the terms of the transaction, the valne of financial derivative instruments can be
estimated by a pricing service provider using a series of techniques, including simulation pricing
models. The pricing models use inputs that arc observed from actively quoted markets such as issuer
details, indices, spreads, interest rates, yield curves, and exchange rates.

The various inputs that are used in determining the fair value of the Fund'’s assets and liabilities are
summarized into the broad levels listed below:

® Level 1 —guoted prices in active markets for identical investmenis

® Level 2 —other significant ohservable inputs (including quoted prices for similar investments,
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continuad)

March 31, 2024

3.

Valuation (Continued)

& Level3 - significantunobservable inputs, including the Investment Manager’s own assumptions
in determining the fair value of investments. Level 3 fair value techniques include
(i) the use of proprietary models that require the use of judgment and the application
of various assumptions including, but not limited to, prepayment assumptions and
default rate assumptions, and (ii) the solicitation of valuations from third parties
{typically, broker-dealers). Third-party valuation providers often utilize proprietary
models that are subjective and also require the use of judgment and the application
of various assumptions inchuding, but not limited to, prepayment assumptions and
default rate assurmptions

The valuation levels are not necessanily an indication of the nsk or iquidity associated with imvesting
in those securities.

The following is a summary of the levels within the valuation hierarchy used in valuing the Fund's
assets and liabilities carried at fair valne:

Assely
Orther
Significant  Sigificant
Quoted Observable Unchservahle
Prices Inputs Inpuis
Description {Level 1) {Level 2) {Level 3) Total
Forward Forcign Currency
Contracts § — 3 1,116 § — 3 11,116
Liabilities
Other
Significant Significant
Quoted Observable Uncbservable
Prices Inputs Inputs
Descriptins Gt 1) Qa3 o) Tadl
Forward Forcign Currency

Contracts s —3 78073 § — 3 78,073

10
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continuad)

March 31, 2024

4, Forward Forcign Currency Contracts

The Fund may enter into a forward foreign eurrency contract to hedge against foreign currency
exchange rate risk oo its non-USD denominated securities and units or to facilitate settlement of
a foreign currency denominated portfolio transaction. A forward foreign currency contract is an
agreement between two parties to buy and sell a currency at a set price with delivery and settlement
at a fumre date. The contract is marked to market daily and the change in value is recorded by the
Fund as an unrealized gain or logs. When a forward foreign currency contract is closed, throngh
cither delivery of the currencies or offset by entering into another forward foreign curmency contract,
the Fand recognizes a realized gain or loss equal to the difference between the value of the contract
at the time it was opened and the value of the contract at the time it is closed.

Forward foreign currency contracts involve elements of marketrisk in excess of the amounts reflected
on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities. The Fund bears the risk of an unfavorable change in the
entering into these contracts from the potential imability of the counterparties to meet the terms
of their contracts. The following table presents the open forward foreign currency contracts as of

March 31, 2024:
SETTLEMENT CONTRACTS INEXCHANGE TUNREALIZED
DATE COUNTERFARTY TO DELIVER FOR GATN
Apr - 2074 UBS AG AL SIR6869 USD 3380272 § (4,031}
Apr-4-2024 Goldrmun Sachs Inderatioea] BRL 4510365 USD S04, 506 1592
Apr-04-2024 UBS AG IFY SBERLST  USD 3626326 (2547
W)
SETTLEMENT CONTRACTS INEXCHANGE UNREALIZED
DATE COUNTERPARTY TO RECETYE FOR GAIN (LDSS)
Apr-04-H124 UBS AG AUD 5186869 USD  3411,040 (26,737)
Dday-r7-2024 UBS AG AL 5186868 USD 3383482 4,053
Aprd-2024 Goldmen Sschs Isternatinesl HRL 4,510,365 USD o02,243 (1,529)
Muy-03-2004 Goldmen Sechs Internatiopa] BRL 4510365 USD 02 (3.538)
UBS AG IFY 550991821 USD 3748183 39,191
May-07-2024 UBS AG i £43891.597 USD 3644481 3,171
{54,171)
Total Met Unroaliced (Toss) on Foresrd Fereign Carrescy Contracl | {56,95T)

11
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(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
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March 31, 2024

5 Charges and Fees

Investment Manager Fee
Investment Manager’s fee is charged to the Master Fund for the services provided to the Master Fund
and Fund.

Trustee Fee
The Fund is charged an annual fee of $7,500, which is acerued daily and payable quarterly in arrears.

Administrator Fee
The Fund is charged an annual fee of $10,000 and an additional $10,000 anmually for ezch additional
Class in excess of the first three Classes.

Distributor Fec

The Distributor fee is accroed daily and payable quarterly in arrears at an annual rate of 0.80% of
the average daily net assets of the Fund.

Ageat Company Fee
The Agent Company fee is acerued daily and payable quarterly in arrears at an anmaal rate of 0.05%
of the average daily net assets of the Fund.

6., Units of Participation
The following represents the Fund's unit activity for the year ended March 31, 2024:

Year Ended March 31, 2024

AU BRL
Units Amount Unbits Amount
Units iseued 51,033 S8 191,424 129436 % 242548
Units redeemed {35,000) {137,066) (61,49%) (109.233)
Met increase 16033 § 54358 67937 § 133,715
JPY UsSD
Units Amount Units Amount
Units issued 681 § 25,573 52,087 § 348,672
Uit redeenned @6120) (L0031 (197.5%) _ (1323407)
et (decrease) (25439) §  (5%4,938) (145451) §  (974,735)
Total
Units Amount
Timits ispuwed 233,237 § BOE61T
Units redecmed (320,15T) (2,590.21T)
Met (docrease) {86920) § (1,781,600

12
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(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
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March 31, 2024

o B Financial Highlights

Year Ended March 31, 2024
Belected Per Unit Data AUD BRL JPY USD
et asset velue, beginning of year $§ 3873 § 1866 § 4249 5 6719
et investment incomet™ 0.189 0.092 1.918 0.339
Net realized and unrealized gain (loss) (o142  od2e (7U4) 0017
Total income (loas) from investment operations 0.047 0.221 (5.186) 0356
Distributions to unitholders _(o23y)  (03%0)  (2499)  (0.360)
MNet asset value, end of year S 3.681__ & 1697 § 34764 % 6.715
Total return %™ 1.21 11.84 (12.22) 5.30
Ratios te Average Net Assety
Expenses % 4.74 4.74 4,75 4.74
Mt imvestment income % 5.04 5.05 5.04 504

0 Wet imvestment income per unit has been calculsted based upon sverage units outstanding for the year.
& Total return calculation is based on the value of & gingle unit of panticipation owtstanding throughout the year.
It represents the percentape change in the pet atset vahie per unit betwesn the bepinning and end of the year,
excluding distributions to unitha lders,
The above ratios are calculated for the participating units as a whole. An individual ynitholder's total
return and ratios may vary from these ratios based on the timing of capital unit transactions.

The above ratio and per unit data includes the Fund's pro rata allocations of income, expenses, and
realized and unrealized gain or loss from the Master Fund.

8 Derivative Instruments
The Fund may transact in a variety of derivative instruments inclhoding forwards for trading purposes
with each instrument’s primary risk exposure being foreign exchange rigk. The fair value of these
derivative instruments is included as a separate line item within the Statement of Assets and
Liabilities by contract type.

The following tables provide information about the fair values and the location of derivatives
not accounted for as hedging instruments which are included within the Statement of Assets and
Liabilities at March 31, 2024 and are grouped by derivative type:

Forward Foreign Currency Contracts 5 11,116

13
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March 31, 2024

B. Derivative Instruments {Continued)

Forward Foreign Currency Contracts. 3 TRATI

0 Forward foreign curreacy contracts are shown i3 separate line fems on the Statement of Assets and Liskilities,

The following tahles provide information about the effect of derivatives within the Fund's Statement
of Operations for the year ended March 31, 2024, The first table provides additional detail about
the amounts and sources of pains or losses realired on derivatives during the year. The second
table provides additional information about the change in unrealized gain (loss) resulting from the
Fund's derivatives during the year. The realized and unrealized gains and losses from derivatives are
presented as separate line items on the Statement of Operations.

Amount of
Realized
{Loss) on

Derivatives

Forwasd Foreign Currescy Contracts H (BT6ARS)

Forward Foreign Currency Contmcts $ _@0s:8)

14

188/281



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000DO000DO00nnoE24736)
Ooooooooooooooooooad
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(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continuad)

March 31, 2024

B. Derivative Instruments {Continued)
During the year ended March 31, 2024, the volume of derivatives activity for the Fund was as

follows:
Moathly
Aorerage
Valoes
Forward Carrency Contrects o Deliver™ 5 (8,004, 758}
Forwand Carrency Contracts o Recare™® 16,367 42T

0 This amount, comverted to presentational currency where applicable, corresponds to the representative sverage
payuble value st seitlement date based on the mocthly activity of the Pund,
@ This gmount, converted to pressntational currency where spplicable, corresponds (o the representative sverage
receivable vale at settlement date based on the monthily activity of the Fond.
9. Offsetting Assets and Lishilities

By using derivative instruments, the Fund is exposed to the counterparty's eredit risk, the risk that
derivative counterparties may not perform in accordance with the contractual provisions offset by
the value of any collateral received. The Fund’s exposure to credit risk associated with counterparty
is limited to the unrealized gains inherent in such transactions that are recognized
within the Statement of Assets and Lisbilities, The Fund minimizes counterparty credit risk through
and managing margin and collateral requirements, as appropriate. The Fund records counterparty
credit risk valuation adjustments, if material, on certain derivative assets in order to appropriatety
reflect the credit quality of the counterparty, These adjustments are also recorded on the market
quotes received from counterparties or other market participants since these quotes may not fully
reflect the credit risk of the counterparties to the derivative instruments.
For financial reporting purposes, the Fund does not offset derivative assets and liabilities that
are subject to netting arrangements within the Statement of Assets and Liabilities, Information is
presented below for all derivative assets and Liabilities that are subject to an enforceable Master
Netting Agreement (“MNA").

Offsetting Derivative Assets and Lisbilities at March 31, 2024

Amounts Prescoted in the
__ Statement of Assets and Liahilities
Assels Liabilities
Forward Foreign Currency Contracts 5 11,116 3 78073
Total derivative assets and liahilities m the
Statement of Assets & Liabilities subject 1o 2 MNA 5 11,116 § 78,073

15
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10,

Offsetting Assets and Liabilities (Continued)
Derivative Assets and Collateral Received

Gross
Amounts of
Asscts
Presented in
the Statement
of Assets and Financial Cash Recelved
Lishilities _ Instrument = a&s Collateral Net Amounit®™
Goldman Sachs
International® s 3892 § (3,892) § $ -
UBS AGR 7,224 {7.224) — —
Total b 11,116 § (11,116) § — § —

¥ Met amount represents the not amount reccivables from the counterparty in the event of defalt.
@ Over the Coumier.

Derivative Liabilities and Collateral Pledged

Gross
Amounts of
Liabilitics
Presented in
the Statement
of Assets and Financial Cash Pledged
_ Lisbilities Instrumest  ssCollateral _ NetAmount®
Goldman Sachs
International® 5 5467 § (3,892) § — 5 1,575

UBS AG® 72,606 {7,224) — 65,382
Tortal 5 78,073 § (11,116) § —3 66,957

W Met acoun! fepresents (be net amount pavable due to the counterpasty in the svent of defsulr.
& Owver the Counter,

Fund Investment Risks

Hedging T jons Ris

Hedging strategies in general are nsually intended to limit or reduce investment risk, but ean also be
expected to limit or reduce the potential for profit. Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent that
assets of the Fund attributable to a particular Class of units are insufficient to satisfy the liabilities
associated with a hedging transaction with respect to such Class of units, such amount of the
liabilities that exceed such assets may be borne by the other Classes of units of the Fund.

16
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March 31, 2024

10. Fund Investment Risks (Continoed)
Interest rate risk is the risk that fixed income securities will decline in value because of changes
in interest rates. As nominal interest rates rise, the value of certain fixed income securities held by
the Fund is likely to decrease. A nominal interest rate can be described as the sum of a real interest
rate and an expected inflation rate. Fixed income securities with longer durations tend to be more
sengitive to chanpges in interest rates, usually making them more volatile than securities with shorter
durations. Duration is used primarily as a measure of the sensitivity of a fixed income's market price
to interest rate (i.c., yicld) movements.

The Fund may imvest in various derivatives which may present additional risks and costs that are
different from and, in certain cases, greater than the risks and costs presented by investing directly in
securitics and other more traditional ivestments. Following are additional risk factors concerning
the use of derivatives:

& Management Risk: Derivative products are specialized instruments that require imvestment
successful use of derivatives requires sophisticated management and an understanding not only
of the undertying instrument but also of the derivative itsell. In particular, the use and complexity
of derivatives require the maintenance of adequate controls to monitor the transactions entered
into, and the ability to assess the risk that a derivative adds to the Fund's portfolio.

e Counterparty Credit Risk: The use of derivatives subjects the Fund to the risk that the counterparty
will not be able or willing to make timely settlement payments or otherwise meet its obligations,
especially during unusnally adverse market conditions. If the counterparty defaults, the Fund
will have contractual remedies, but the Fund may be unable to enforce its contractual rights.

risk is more pronounced if a counterparty’s obligations exceed the amount of
collateral held by the Fund (if any), the Fund is unable to exercise its interest in collateral upon
defanlt by the counterparty, or the termination value of the instrument varies significantly from
the marked-to-market value of the instrument.

& Documentation Rizk: Many derivative instruments have documentation risk, Becauss the
contract for cach over-the-counter derivetive transaction is individually negotiated with a specific
counterparty, there exists the risk that the parties may interpret contractual terms differently.
If that occurs, the cost and unpredictability of the legal proceedings required for the Fund to
enforce its contractual rights may lead the Fund to decide not to pursue its claims against the
counterparty. The Fund, therefore, assumes the risk that it may be unable to obiain payments the
Investment Manager belicves ane owed to them under derivatives instruments or those payments
may be delayed or made only after the Fund has incurred the costs of litigation.

17
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10, Fund Investment Risks (Continned)
Risk Associated with [nvestment in the Master Fund

The Fund, throupgh its investment in the Master Fund, is exposed to various types of risks. As the
Fund's assets are invested in the Master Fund, they are primarily exposed to the risks faced by the
Master Fund. A summary of risks is discussed in the Master Fund’s financial stetements, which are
attached and should be read in conjunction with the Fund's financial statements.

11. Contingencies and Commitments

In the normal course of business, the Fund enters into contracts that contain a variety of representations
armangements is unknown, as this would invelve future claims that may be made against the Fund
that have not yet occurred. Based on experience, management is of the view that the risk of loss
in connection with these potential indemnification obligations is remote; however, there can be no
assurance that material liabilities related to such obligations will not arise in the future that could
adversely impact the business of the Fund.

12. Subsequent Events

As of May 23, 2024, the date the financial statements were available to be issued, no subsequent
events or transactions had occurred that would have materially impacted the financial statements as

presented.

18
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(2025 )
22,003,464.13 3,287,097,506
6,833,844.93 1,020,908,094
15,169,619.20 2,266,189,412
291,154.34
1,353,559.54
81,563.97
948,375.43
1.20 179
6.61 987
4,757
5.41 521
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2025
11,050,010 16 5,076
11,050,010 100,010
1,095
100 1,095
1,195 17 8,521
1CAAP
1940
SEC FCA

2025 209 2,700
2025

124,871,535,275
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2024 30
2024 2023
30 30
12 2,768,475 413,582 3,028,509 452,429
2,768,475 413,582 3,028,509 452,429
13 14,894,103 2,225,030 16,836,103 2,515,145
13 427,837 63,915 - -
14 29,025,164 4,336,069 60,105,224 8,979,119
15,001,343 2,241,051 6,175,526 922,562
59,348,447 8,866,064 83,116,853 12,416,827

16 (16,799,146)  (2,509,624)  (16,977,237)  (2,536,229)

42,549,301 6,356,440 66,139,616 9,880,597
45,317,776 6,770,023 69,168,125 10,333,026
16 (1,463,573) (218,643)  (1,771,498) (264,644)
43,854,203 6,551,379 67,396,627 10,068,382
17 11,050,010 1,650,761 11,050,010 1,650,761
18 43,008 6,425 43,008 6,425
32,761,185 4,894,193 56,303,609 8,411,196
43,854,203 6,551,379 67,396,627 10,068,382
2025 15
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30
2024 30 2023 30
79,558,529 11,885,249 77,683,809 11,605,184
(74,802,122)  (11,174,689)  (72,850,099)  (10,883,076)
4,756,407 710,560 4,833,710 722,108
2,334,551 348,759 2,771,770 414,075
(2,327) (348) - i
7,088,631 1,058,971 7,605,480 1,136,183
10 (631,055) (94,273)  (2,382,247) (355, 884)
6,457,576 964,697 5,223,233 780,299
56,303,609 8,411,196 61,080,376 9,124,797
6,457,576 964,697 5,223,233 780,299
11 (30,000,000)  (4,481,700)  (10,000,000)  (1,493,900)
32,761,185 4,894,193 56,303,609 8,411,196
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2024 30 2023 30
4,975,310 4,830,477
25,939,441 25,525,652
13,629,422 15,004,638
13,335,509 13,175,310
10,604,171 8,825,617
11,074,676 10,322,115
79,558,529 77,683,809
2024 30 2023 30
(314,406) (304,167)
(10,690) (10,143)
(910,814) (888,629)
(394,521) (249,055)
(2,327) -
(419,511) (424,525)
(9,251) -
- (1,320)
40,915 15,596
126,987 21,824
295,475 248,051
2,293,636 2,486,299
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2024 30 2023 30
20,246,290 19,197,517
3,117,868 2,909,843
2,243,050 2,013,911
45,440,456 45,444,162
3,754,458 3,284,666
74,802,122 72,850,099

2024 30 2023 30
16,954,480 17,830,652
2,204,685 2,236,668
117,644 (1,874,665)
969,481 1,004,862
20,246,290 19,197,517

2025

2024 30 2023 30
20 22
12 16
21 24
53 62

2024 30 2023 30
1,663,679 1,538,317
59,602 52,794
- 64,166
1,723,281 1,655,277

2023
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2018 2019 2020 2021 421,687 2023
410,793
2025
100%
100%
%
2025
14
1,209,683 2024 30

2023 1,624,752

2,552,917 2023 1,885,772
338,752 2023 162,379
2,381,894 2023 1,735,373
428,928 2023 235,759
969,481 2023 1,004,862

2024 30 2023
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2024 30 2023 30

1,487,845 1,391,066
(92,004) (43,182)

1,395,841 1,347,885

(252,319) 367,693

(512,467) 666,669

631,055 2,382,246

2024 30 2023 30

7,088,631 7,605,480

25 2023 22 1,772,158 1,673,206

(536,632) 41,431
(92,004) (43,182)

(512,467) 666,669

- 44,122

631,055 2,382,246

2024 30 2024 30 25

2023 22 2023

2023 10 (299,691) (37,258) (336,949)
(31,951) 544,418 512,467
29,177 223,142 252,319

2024 30 (302,465) 730,302 427,837
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25
299.97 30,000,000 2023 10,000,000

70,042 2023
355,890 8,514 98,663 136,457 3,801,734 4,401,258
89,435 - 79,293 - - 168,728
- - (98, 663) - - (98, 663)
445,325 8,514 79,293 136,457 3,801,734 4,471,323
337,089 5,584 98,663 - 931,413 1,372,749
36,007 795 9,251 - 382,709 428,762
- - (98, 663) - - (98,663)
373,096 6,379 9,251 - 1,314,122 1,702,848
72,229 2,135 70,042 136,457 2,487,612 2,768,475
18,801 2,930 - 136,457 2,870,321 3,028,509

2024 30 2023 30

10,798,859 11,193,021

3,063,262 4,122,905

3,452 474,406

1,028,530 1,045,771

14,894,103 16,836,103

3,063,262 2023 4,122,905
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31,175 2023 27,487
427,837 2023
3,842,488 2023 3,922,548
126,987 2023 21,824
2023 248,051
25,182,676 2023 56,182,676

@)
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15

102
2024
25,182,676 25,182,676
3,842,488 3,842,488
29,025,164 29,025,164
2023
56,182,676 56,182,676
3,922,548 3,922,548
60,105,224 60,105,224
2024 30 2023 30
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16
2024 30 2023 30
3,929,840 4,203,712
15,328 -
2,838,775 2,903,340
10,015,203 9,870,185
16,799,146 16,977,237
56,772 -
1,406,801 1,771,498
1,463,573 1,771,498
2024 30 2023 30
15,442 -
16,355 -
31,797 -
17
2006
2024 30 2023 30
100,010
2023 100,010 100,010 100,010
10,950,000
2023 10,950,000 10,950,000 10,950,000
11,050,010 11,050,010
18

43,008

19
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2024 30 2023 30
968,699 1,118,509
3,874,797 4,474,036
4,843,496 5,592,545
2020
11 10
94403

www . Franklinresources.com Investor

2024
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WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED 18

Statement of financial position as at 30 September 2024
Registered No, 2479672

Mg k.1 M
September September
2024 2023
5 5
FINED ASSETS
Tangible assds 12 2768475 3,028,509
TOTAL FINED ASSETS 2.TR8A4TS 3,028 500
CURERENT ASSETS
DEBRTORS: amounts falling due within one vear 13 14,594,103 16,836,103
DEBTORS; amounts falling due after more than one year 13 427,837 .
[nwestments 14 249,025,164 60,105,224
Cash at bank and in hand 15,001,343 6,175,526
50348447 23116853
CREDITORS: amounts falling due within one year 16 (16,799 146) (16,977,237)
WET CURRENT ASSETS 42,549,301 66,139,616
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 45317776 69,168,125
CREDITORS: amounts falling due after more than one year 16 (1,463,573 {1,771.498)
WET ASSETS 43,854,203 67,396,627
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called up share capital 17 11,050,010 11,050,010
Oiher reserve 15 43,008 43,0038
Retained camings 32,761,185 56,303,600
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' FURDES 43,854,203 67,396,627

The notes on pages 1910 35 form an integral part of these financial s ements,

The financial statements and notes on pages 17 to 35 were approved for issue by the board and signed on
its behal £ by:

Do i ot Uy
[.,,umi M. Zelouf Date: 15 January 2025
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WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
Statement of income and retained earnings

for the vear ended 30 September 2024
Registered No. 2479672
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Year ended
30 September
2023

5
77683809

(72.850,099)

4,833,710

2,771,770

605,480

(2382247}

5004 333

61,080,376
5,223,233

{ 10,000,000

Year ended
30 September
Note 2024
3
Oiperaling revenes 4 79,558, 529
Ciperating expanses £ (74,802,122}
Oiperating income 4,756,407
Interest receivable and similar income 5 233,551
Interest payable and sinular expenses 5 (2327)
Profit before taxation 7,088,631
Tax on profit 10 (631.055)
Profit for the financial period 6457 5Th
Retmned earnings at the beginming of the
periosd 56,303,609
Profit for the financial pericd 6,457,576
Dividends 11 (30,000,000
Retained earmings at the end of the pedod 32761185

56, 303 605

All amounts are inrespect of continuing activities,

The notes on pages 19 to 35 form an integral pant of these financial A Aements.
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WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
MNotes to financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2024 19

1. General informsation

Western Aszet Management Company Limited (“the Company™ ) is an investment manager, principally
providing investment management services to both external clients and to clients of its affiliates, The
Company 15 authonsed by the Financal Condoct Authonity as a MIFIDPRU investment firm.

The Company is a company limited by shares, incorporated and domaciled under the laws of England
il Wales, The address of its principal place of business and registered office is 10 Exchange Square,
Primrose Street, Lomdon EC2ZA ZEN. The ultimate parest company is Franklin Resources. Inc.
(“Pareni™}.

2, Statement of compliance

These individual financial statements of the Company have been prepared in compliance with United
Kingdom Acconnting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102, *The Financial Reponting
Sandard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” (“FRS 1027), and the Companies Act 2006,

The Company has taken advantage of the exemplion available under FRS 102 from preparing a
siatement of cash flows on the basis that it is a qualifying entity, and the statement of cash flows is
inclisded in the consolidated financial statements of the Parent entity.

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

There were no new accounting standards adopted dunng fiscal year 2024 that have matenial impacts on
the Company’s financial condition or results of operations.

In May 2023, the IASE issued amendments to 1AS 12, which introduced a temporary exception from
recognising and disclosing deferred tax assets and liabilities related to Pillar Two miles published by the
Organization for Economic Co-operation and Development. Entities are required to disclose separately
its current tax expense {income) related to Pillar Two income taxes. The Pillar Two mules are not yet
effective for the Company and the Company is currently evaluating the impact that the application of
the rules will have on its financial statements in fiture accounting periods.

The principal acconmting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are sel oul
below, These policies have been consistently applied to all the vears presented, unless olherwise stated,

(a) Basis of preparatics)
These separate fimmncial statements are prepared on a going concem basis, under the historical cost
comvention, & modified by the recogmtion of certain financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair valne.

The Directors consider that the Company has adequate financial resowrces (o remain in operation
fior a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are amthorised for issoe
and have therefore continued to adopt the going concern basis in preparing these financial
slalérments.
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WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
MNotes to financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2024 20

A, Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(b} Exemptions for qualifying entities wnder FRS 102
The Company has taken advantage of the exemption from disclosing details of financial
instruments, on the basis that it 15 a qualifving entity and disclosure of financial instruments such
3 tradde receivables and trade pavables are included in the consolidated fimancial gatements of the
Parent.

significant judgenents ELTL S

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS 102 requires the use of cenain
critical accounting estimates, Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
histoncal experience and olther factors, including expectaiions of fiture evenis that are believed to
be reasonable wnder the circumstances. The resulling accounting estimates will, by definition

seldom equal the related actual msulis,

(]

Ag disclosed in note 7, the Parent issued redricted stock to cerfain employvees and 100% vesing
will oceur in July 2025 if certain vesting condibions are mel_ In the prior vear, a reversal of the
accrued lability related to restricted stock ook place due to an assessment made, which indicated
that the vesting conditions are unlikely to be met. The awards remain open and active and
performance conditions will continue to be monitored umil the vesting date in July 2025,

(d) Emetional cumensy
The fimctional and reporting currency of the Company is US Dollar, as it reflects the Company’s
primary economic environment in which it operates,

{e) Foreign curme 1041
Foreign cumency monetary assets and habilities ane translated mto US Dollars o the balance sheet
date. Transactions during the period expressed in foreign currencies are translated into 'S Dollars
at the rate of exchange miling in the month in which they ocour, Any foreign exchange differences
are taken to the Statement of Income and Retained Eamings in the vear in which they arise.

Foreign curmency non-monetary assets are carmed in the talance sheet translated into U5 Dollars at
higtonic rfes of exchange. This is determined uzing the month end rate of exchange for the month
in which they were acquired.

The £/ US Dollar rate used af the balance sheet date is 1 3370 (2023 1,2200)
The average rate for the income statement for the year was 1.2681 (2023 1.2263)

() Bevenue recognition
Turnowver or revenue is measured ot the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and
represents the amount receivable for investment management senvices rendered, net of any relates

allowed and value added taxes. Revenue in respect of performance fees is recognised in the
financial statements al the énd of the related contractisml performance perod when all performance
critenia lave been met and the outcome of the transaction can be measured reliably.
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WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
MNotes to financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2024 21

A, Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

() Emplovee benefits
The Company provides a range of benefits (o emplovees, including annal bomis armangements,
paid holiday amangements and defined contribation pension plans.

(i) Short Term Bencfits
Short term benefits, inclnding holiday pay and other simular non-monetary benefits, ane
recognised a5 an expense in the pedod in which the service is received.

(iiy Incentive Plans
The Company operates an Employee Deferred Incentive Plan ("EDTP” ) scheme as part of the
orverall remmneration strategy for emplovees. Anmually, a bonos award, as determined by the
Company, may be paid into the EDIP, Where the EDIP 15 considered (o remain under the
comtrol of the Compary, the assets and abilities of the EDIP are included in the Company's
financial statements until they become fully vested and are paid to the relevant employees.
The Company consolidates its EDP in line with section ¥ of FR.S 102,

Additionally, the Parent issued restricted stock units o certain semor staff and vesting will
oceur in July 2025 if centain conditions are met. Ownership of the restricted stock units are
transtemed (o the emplovee once vested. See MNotes & and 7 for further detail, The Company
receives charges from its Parent and recognises the fair value of the share awards as an expense
over the vesting period. The fair value is estimated on the date of the grant based on the market
price of the underlying shares of the Parent's common stock, excluding the impact of any non-
markel vesting conditions (e g, profitability and sales growth targeéts) on the date of the grant,
and the Company's estimate of shares that will eventually vest. The total number of awards
expected 1o vest is adjusted for estimated forfeiiures. Al each reporting date, the Company
revizes ils estimates of the number of shares that are expected o vest on vesting date and
recognizes the impact of the revizion of the estimates, if any, within compensation and benefits
in the statement of comprehensive income with & corresponding adjustment (o charges
received and payable to the Parent over the remaining vesting period.

The Company has set up a Group Personal Pension Plan, which is a defined contriition
scheme and is administered by a third pany. Contrnbutions to the penson scheme are charged
to the Statement of Income and Retained Earnings in the period in which the pension service
has been received. See Note 9 for further degails.

(i) Annrial Boses Plas
The Company operates an anmual bonug plan for emplovees. An expense is recognized in the
Statement of [ncome and Retained Eamings as the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation to make payments under the plan as a resull of past evenis and a reliable estimate of
the obligation cam be made,

(h) Tasation
Taxation expense for the perod comprses cument and deferred ax recognised in the reporing
period. Tax is recognised in the Statemend of Income and Retained Earmings. Cument or defemed
taxation assets and labilities are not discounted.
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WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
MNotes to financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2024 22

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

{1) Crrremt Texw
Current tax is the amount of corporation tax payable in respect of the taxable profit for the year
or prior years, Tay 12 caleulated on the basis of tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substamively enacted by the period end.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in fax retums with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation 15 subject (o mterpretation, 1t establishes provisions where

appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax suthonties.

fiil Deferred Tax
Dreferred tax anses from timing differences. These tining differences anse from the inclusion
of income and expenses in tax assessments in pefods different from those in which they are
recognized in financial satements.,

Defemred tax i3 recogmised on all tming differences at the reporting date, Unrelieved tax losses
and other defermed tax assets are only recognised when it is probable that they will be recovered
against the reversal of deferred tax liabilities or other fitture taxable profits,

Deferred tax 15 measured using tax rales and laws that bave been enacted or substantively
enacted by the period end and that are expected o apply to the reversal of the timing difference.

thy Tangible fxed gesels

The cost of tangible fixed assets is their purchase cost, including any incidental expenses of
acquisition. Depreciation is caleulated Lo write offthe cost of the tangible fixed assets on astrmight-
line basis over their expected economic lives. The principal anmual rates used for the parpese are:;

IT & Communications equipment %
Office equipment 2% = 33%

Depreciation is charged ona monthly basis once the as=et iz available for use following acquisition.

Leasehold improvemends are deprecisted over the remaining life of the relevant lease. Depreciation
fior artwork 15 not provided as ne dimimation of its value is expected.

(i) Dividends
Drividends and other distrluotions to the Company®s sharehol der are recognised s a liability in the
financial statements in the period in which the dividends and other distribwions are approved by
the board of directors. These amounts are recognized. in the Statement of ncome and Retained
Eamings,

(j) Investments
The Company”s investment in EDIP and Western Asset Liguidity Funds ple ("WALF") are ¢urment
assel imvestments and are dated at fur valee. Changes in fair value are recognised as fair value
adjuztmenis throngh the Statement of Income and Retained Eamings. The fair value of financial
assets traded in active markets is based on end of day quoted bid prices at the balance sheet date.
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WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
MNotes to financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2024 .

3. Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

(k) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents inchede cash in hand, deposits held at call wath banks and bank
owverdrafis.

{1} Leased assets
Al inception the Company asseszes agreements that transfer tee right (o use assets. The assessment
considers whether the amangement 15, or conlains, a lease based on the substance of the
arcanzement. See MNote 19 for further details.

(1} Finamee feased avseis
Leases of assets that transfer substantially all the nsks and rewards incidental to ownership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at commencement of the lease as
assels at the fair value of the leased asset. Incremental direct costs, incumed in negotiating and
armanging the lease, are included in the cost of the asset.

Assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful life of the
assel, Assels are assessed for impmirment at each reporting date, The capital element of lease
obligations i5 recorded #s a liability on inception of the amrangement.

{11) Ope reting leased asseis
Leases that do not transfier all the risks and rewards of ownership are clasafied as operating
leases. Payments under operating leases are charged o the Statement of Income and Retained
Earmings on a sraight-ling basis over the period of the lease.

(iil} Lease incentives
The aggregate value of the lease incentive has been recogmised in the balance sheet and
amortiged on straight line basis over the period of the lease, crediting the Statement of Income
and Retained Earnings, 1o redice the lease expense. See Mote 19 for further details,

(m) Einancial instrumenis
The Company has chosen to adopt Sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102 in respect of financial
instomments,

Section 11 { Basic Finaneial Tnstrume nes ) and Section 12 (Ovher Financial Instronme wis) were issned
under FRS 102 and provide guidance for recognising, derecognising, assessing impaimment, and
measuring and disclosing financial ingmments. Section 11 applies to basic financial instruments,
such as trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade and other payables, bank loans,
intercompany payables and common and preference shares. Section 12 applies (o other more
complex financial instruments and transactions such as dervatives, including currency fitures and
forward foreign exchange contracts. Basic financial instruments are generally recognised at cost or
amomised cost.

The Company did noe directly enter into any denivative transactions at 30 September 2024,
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WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
MNotes to financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2024 g

A, Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(n) Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or construciive obligation az a
result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, and the amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Provisions ane messured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation using a pre-ax rate that eflects cumrent market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the ohligation.

(o) Contingent lighilities
Contingent liabilitiez anise as a result of pagt events when (i) it is not probable that there will be an
ontflow of resources of that the amount cannot be reliably measured at the reporting date or (i) the
exigtence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of uncertain fture events mol
wholly within the Company’s control. Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the financial
sttements unless the probability of an outflow 15 remote, or the outflow 15 expected o be
imnmiaterial.

4. Operating revenues

Operating revenoes, which is stated net of value added tax. represents the amounts receivable for the
manazement of invesament portfolics for clients and an allocation of tumover from the Company s
affiliates when: the Company 15 responsible for servicing the chent,

The geographical location of the pont folios s analysed as follows:

e endad ewr ended

30 September 30 Seplember

2024 2023

s 5

United Kingdom 4,975,310 4830477
United Siates of America 25,930 441 15,525,652
Europe 13,629422 15,004,638
AsE 13,335,509 13,175,310
Middle Eaa 10,604,171 8825617
Rest of the World 11,074,676 10322115
79,558,520 TG B0
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WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
MNotes to financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2024 25

5  Operating profit

Year ended Year ended
30 Seprember 30 September
2004 2023
3 3

The operating profit is ated afler (charging) / creddng:
Auditors' remuneration - audit services (3140 400) (304,167)
Auditors' remuneration - CASS audit {10, 650) (100, 143)
Lease of office premises (2108143 (ER8.620)
Lz on foreign exchange (394.521) (249.055)
Interest pavable (2317 -
Depreciation - tangible owned fixed asscts 41%511) (424,525)
Diepreciation - tangible fixed assets held under finance lease (8.351) -
Loss on disposal of tangible ovwned fived assels - (1,320
Interest receivable 40915 15,596

Income from current assel investments:

- Realised gams - EBT 126,987 21,84
- Unrealised Gain 205475 248,051
= (Gaing on nvestments - WALF 2,293,636 2,486,250

6. Operating ex penses

Operating expenses incumed by the Company have been analysed as follows

Year ended Year ended
30 September 30 September

204 2023
5 5
Compensation & Benefits 20,246,200 19197517
Comemmications & Technology 3117868 2909843
Clgcupimney 2243050 2,013,911
Distribution Fees & Service Fees ® 45:H0456 4544162
Creneral & Administrative # 3754458 1,284 666
74,802,122 T2B50,00%

= A pror year adjustment was made to reclass expenses amounting to 32,787,205 from General &
Administrative expenses to Distribation and Service Fees. The expenses relate to service fees allocated
from the parent company,
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WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
MNotes to financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2024 26

6, Operating ex penses (continued})

Employee compensation and benefit costs incumred by the Company and incleded in admimstmative
expenses comprise of:

Year ended Year ended
30 September 30 Septernber
2024 Hi23
-3 s
Wages and salasies 16,954,480 17,830,652
Soecial security costs 220 685 226608
Reatricted gock 117,644 (1874, 665)
Fension cods H0 8] 100, 862
200,246, 250 19,197,517

In the prior vear, a reversal of the accrued liability related to restricted stock tock place doe to an
assessment made, which indicated that the vesting conditions were unlikely to be met, The awards
remmin open and active and performance conditions wall continue o be monitored until the vesting date
in July 2025.

The average monthly number of persons (including executive directors) emploved by the Company
dunng the year was:

“ear ended Year ended
30 September 30 September
2024 Jog3

By achivity:
Portfolio memagement 0 2
Marketing & client services 12 16
Adrmumistration 21 il
53 52

Aggregate directors' emolumernts related tothe highest paid director are as follows:

Wear ended Year ended

30 Septembeor 30 Seplember
2024 223

5 5

Emohmenis 1,668 675 1.538.317

Pension contributions 59,602 52,754
Emplover defermred benefits = &4 166
e 1655277

Retirement benefits are accnuing to 1 (2023 1) director under a defined contribution scheme. The
emoluments of the other 2 directors (2023; 2) are paid by the Parent or other group companies which
make o mecharges (o the Company. These two directors are employees and / or directors oF the Parent
anid £ or a mumber of fellow subsidiaries and it is not possible to make an accurate apportionment of their
emoluments in resped of the Company. Accordingly, the above details include no emoluments in respect
of these (wo directors.
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WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
MNotes to financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2024 27

7. Share-based payments

During the yvear 20018, 2019, 2020 and 2021 EDIP schemes partially vested and a cash amount of
S421.687 (2023 5410, 793) was paid by the Company to the highest paid director.

The Parent 1ssued restncied stock unils (o certain employees and 10025 vesting will oceur in July 2025
if certain conditions are met, The emploves must be in continuous employment with the Company and
performance penod revenues must exceed the performance threshold. Should performance perod
revennes be less than the performance threshold bt more than five times the base anmal net revennes,
vesting will ocour on a pro-rata basis subject (o maximum vesting of 100 and a minimam of (24,
Orwnership of the resinicted stock units are iransferred to the employee once vested. In the prior vear, a
reversal of the accmed liability related to restricted stock took place due to an assessment made, which
indicated that the vesting conditions are unlikely to be met, The awards remain open and active and
performance conditions will continue (o be monitored until the vesting date in July 2025,

8. Incentive plans

The trustees appointed to “The Western Assel Management Company [nfernational Employee
Deferred Incentive Plan™ (“EDIP™ ) ane “Interirust Group”,

Investments in EDIP are disclosed in Note 14,

EDIF awards totalling 51,209,683 were made (o senior employees attritutable to the financial
period ended 30 Seplember 2024 (2023 $1.624,752).

An accrual for awards totalling £2,552,917 (2023; $1,885,772) is included in these financial
statements, and this total amount will be contnbuted to the EDIP. In addition, $338,752 (2023
£162,379) has been provided in respect of employer's national insurance payable on these awards.

The expenze recorded in the Statement of Income and Retained Earnings for the EDIPis $2.351,894
(2023 1,735.373) and the employer's mational inswrance on this amounts to 5428928 (2023:
$235,759),

9. Pension

The Company makes pension comtributions into a defined contibution pension scheme. The
scheme is a Group Personal Pension Plan which is mm and administered by Scottish Widows, an
unrelated third party,

The pension cosl charge represents contnbutions payable by the Company 1o the fund and

amourded 1o 3269481 (2023: $1004,362). AL 30 Seplember 2024 there were no pension
contribigions in arrears (2023 Snil).

224/281



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000DO000DO00nnoE24736)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED

MNotes to financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2024 -
10, Tax on profit
a. T on profit
Year ended Year ended
30 Septemmber 30 September
2024 2023

-3 5
Current period tax charge LAST 845 1,391,066
Adjustments in respect of prior periods (2,006 (43.182)
Current period tax charge 1,395,841 1,347.885
Deferred tax - current period timing differences (252319 367,693
Deferred tax - adjustments in respect of prior peniods (512.467) G, 665
Taotal tax on profits 631,055 2382 246

b Reconcilintion of tax charee

Year ended Year ended

M) September 30 September

2024 2023

3 &

Frofit before tacation 7088 631 7,605 480

Expected tax at standard rate of 25%(2023; 2204 1772158 1,673,206
Effects of:

Permmnent iemns (336,632) 41,431

Crrent G prioryear adjiustment (S2.004) {43,182

Deferred o prior year adpstment (512467) G5, 665

Dieferred tax rate change - 44,122

Tetal period tax chinze 631,055 1382, 46

Tax as=sezsed for the vear ended 30 September 2024 is 1lower than (2023; lower than) the standand rate
of corporation tax in the UK for vear ended 30 September 2024 a 25% (2023: 22%). The cument period
tax charge has not been adjusted by group relief from other group companies 38 no group relief has

been granted.
¢ Defermed tax
Eixed Assels Employee Jotal
LCHnuscraiion
5 & &
AssetiLiability) as at | October, 2023 (299.,601) (37.258) (336,949
Frior period - credit{chanze) (31,951) s44.418 512467
Current period credit(charge) 20177 223,142 252,319
Aszset(Liability) as at 30 September, 2024 (302,465 T30,302 427837
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10, Tax on profit {continwed)

The timing differences related to: {i) accelerated capital allowances on fixed assets: and (i) the issuance
of deferred compensation awards to emplovess on which a corporate tax deduction can be taken when
the deferred compensation vests and 15 distributed to participants,

The Directors consider that it 15 more likely than not that there will be sufficient taxable profits in the
fture such as (o realise the deferred tax asset and therefore the asset has been recognised in these
fimancial stafements.

Deferred tax has been calenlated using a tax rate of 25%6, which is the tax rate expected to apply when
timing differences fully nnwind.

11. Dividends

A dividend of 530,000,000 was declared and paid to the Company’s shareholder Legg Mason Global
Holdings Lid (2023: $10,000.000) equating to 329997 per ordinary share and there are no amounts
outstanding included within these financial statements -

12, Tangible assefs
Ag at 30 Seplember 2024, the net bool: value of tangible assets held under fnances was $70,042 (2023

Snil}
Ir& B -
Commemicalion: & office Legzdhold
Egapment Exiges Equpoen) Al Improvammis Total
3 £ E H 3 -1

Co
Asat | Qatober 2003 FhEN0 £414 EEL 136457 3,800,734 AN
Addtions 9433 7929 . 165728
Drigromls z ' EEEsT) ) 2 (5,483
Az al 30 Septambes 2024 445,325 8514 79,253 136457 3,500,734 2471323
Aol aton deprec it por
Asat | October 2003 397,080 3564 vEE #1413 132,49
Charge for e fmancal year 36,007 755 251 200 415762
Dupozmls : (BE AT ; [B0245)
Asat 30 September 2024 373,00 6318 #.24 ) 13408 00 548
Nt bock walier
30Sephemrher 2004 T2 2,135 70,042 136457 ZAST 512 2748475
ISR 2023 18801 2,930 - 136457 25032 3005 509
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13, Debtors
30 September 30 September
204 2023
5 5
Ammrounis Falling due within ome year:
Trade deblors 10,748 850 11,193,021
Amounts owed by group undertakings 3,063,262 4,122,905
Onher debtors 3452 474,406
Prepayments and accrued imncome 1028 530 1,045,771
14,804,103 36,103

Az at 30 September 2024 33063262 (2023 54.122.905) was due from group undemakings is
unsecured, interest free, has no fixed date of repayment and is repayable on demand,

The Company makes available to all employvees interest-free seazon ticket loans which are repayable
by ten monthly instalments. The balance of $31.175 (2023 27 437) is included in other debiors.
Amonnts falling due after more than one vear from Deferred Tax is 5427837 (2023; Snil). See Mote
10 for fimther details,

14, Investments

The Company has an investment of 33,842 488 (2023; $3,922,548) in EDIP, This planis invested in a
range of investment funds managed by Western Asset.

During the year, the EDIP investments generafed realised gains of $126,987 (2023; §21.824), and
unirealised gain of $295,475 (2023: §248.,051).

The Company has an investment in the US Dollar fund in the WALF series. The WALF fund is a lighly
rated money-market fund and has same day liquidity, The principal investment objeciive of the fund is
the preservation of capital, This investment is carmied at far valoe and at the balance sheet date was
525,182,676 (2023; 556,182,676}, The Company has invested in the D share class and provides
imvestment management services to the fund.

The Company class fies its financial assets within the EDIP, which are shares and other variable -yield
securities af fair value through Statement of Income and Betained Earnings.

The Company classifies it financial assets within WALF a8t fair value through Statement of Income
and Retained Eamings,

Financial assets designated at far value through Statement of Income and Retained Eamings at
inception are those that are managed and whese performance is evalusted on a fur value bass.
Information ko these fisancial assets is provided intemally on a fair value basis to the Company s
key management personnel. The Company’s strategy is to invest in funds, designated at Fair value
through Statement of Income and Retained Eamings upon initial recognition.

The fair values of financial instroments traded in active markets are based on end of day quoted d
prices on the balance sheet date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer broker, industry group. pricing service, or regulatory agency, and
those prices represent actual and regulirly occurnng market transactions on an am’ s length basis,
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14, Investments (continued)

Az the funds invested in by the Company are priced dailv based on net asset value (NAV) with
subscriptions and redemptions ccowrring at NAV, the funds are considered to be measured at a quoted
price i an active markel.

Met gains or losses ansing from changes in the fair value of fur-valued fAnancial assets, are presented
in the Statement of Income and Retained Earnings, together with related interest and dividend income
within “Interest receivable and similar income™ in the period in which they arize.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on end of day quoted bid prices
at the balance sheet date and these securities are inchuded in (a),

The Company closely momtors the valuation of assets in markets that may become less lguid
Determimng whether a market 15 active requires the exercise of judzment and 15 determined based on
facts amd circumestances of the market Ffor the imvestment being measured. The Company does not hold
investments where the investments have no active market.

The Company follows the FRS 102 hierarchy (o estimate fair value:

Level 1 The unadjusted quoted price in an active market for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access o the measurement date,

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices incloded within Level 1 that are observable (ie. developed
using marked data) for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3t Inpims are unobservable (ie. for which market datais unavailable) for the asset or liahility,

The tables below present ivesiments cammed at fair value,

P e Level Level 2 Level 3 Total
Fair value through profit and loss 5 5 i i
- WALF 25182676 - - 25,182,676
- EBT 3842488 - * 3842488
Total assets 29025 16d - - 20025 164
023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Fair value through profit and boss 5 5 b3 3
- WALF 56,182,676 - - 56182676
- EBT 3922548 - - 31922548
Total assets G005 230 : : B0

During the year ended 30 September 2024 and the year 30 Seplember 2023, the Company did not hold
investments categorised as level 2 or level 3 and cormespondingly there were no transfers involving level
Z2orlevel 3,
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15. Finandal risk management

Financial nzk facors

The Company’s activities expose it to a vanety of financial nsk: market nsk (including cumency nsk,
fair value interest rate nsk, cash flow interest mte nsk and price nsk), credit nsk and Lquidity nsk. The
Company s overall nsk management programme focuses on the unprediciability of financial markets
and seeks o minimise potential adverse effects on the Company’s financial performance.

Risk management is cartied out by an intemal nsk management department adhering to principles and
policies approved by the boand of directors. The Company has written principles for overall nsk
manazement, 35 well a3 written policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, imenest
rate risk. credit gk use of derivative financial instruments, and investment of excess lquidity,

(ay Market risk

(i) Foreign exchamge sk

The Company, being US Dollar functional, and operating intemationally, 15 exposed to foreign
exchange nsk arising from various currency exposures, primarly to Steding, Euro and Yen
Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions and recognized assets and
lighilities which are denominated in a cumrency that is nof the entity’s functional cwrrency. The
estimat ed fair value of defivative instmment = reflects the estimated amount the Company would
receive or pay in an arm's length transaction. The amount 5 determined wsing quoted prices
from independent third parties, Dunng the vear the Company mitigaied its foreign exchange nisk
by the use of derivative ingruments administered by an affiliate, specifically cormrency forward
contracts. During the year, the Company made a foreign exchange loss of 3394521 (2023: Joss
of $281.674).

(1) Price nsk

The Company's EDIP investments held by the trustees are diversified in accordance with the
guidelings of the scheme. As all investments are held by the trust, the nsk and reward of
investment relirns are bome entirely by the scheme’s pamicipants, the Company 15 1ot exposéed
to price risk relating to its EDIP scheme, The Company is nol exposed to commodity price risk.
The Compary is indirectly exposed to price nsk as revenues may fluctuate based on assets inder
management, irterest rates and the retums of the fixed-income markets. Additomally, the
Company's investment in the WALF fund, a highly rated money market fund mamaged by
Western Aszet, carmes limied exposure Lo price nsk as the pnmary objective of the fund is o
presemve capital. Furthermore, the Company follows strict gmdelines on where it may invest its
surplus cash, including limits on the amount of cash it may deposit with a single institution,

(b Credi nsk

Credil nsk 15 managed on a Company-wide bass, Credit nsk anises from cash deposits with banks
and financial insttutions, cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments, credil exposunes 1o
clients from outstanding fee receivables and leans made to group Companies. All the Company's
banking relaticnzhips are with highly rated banks for short term deposits and are limdted to those
with a Moody's rating of at 1east Baal. or with a Standard and Poor’s rating of &t least BEB+, The
Company assesses the credit quality of clients, taking into account their financial staiements,
regulatory position, past expenence and other factors. Intercompany loans, including existing
loans, may be considered only after assessing the impad projected cash flows under stress testing
scenanos and ensunng the Company s mmmum gquidity tolerance levels are mamtaimed,
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15. Finandal risk management (continued)

(c) Liguidity nisk
Liquichity risk is the risk that cash may not be available at a reasonable cost to pay obligations when
due. The Company performs monthly cash hquidity momitonng agmns set s (o ensure funds
are available to meet such requirements,

{dy Cash flow and fair value imterest rate fsk
As the Company’s only significant interest-bearing asset is cash, the Company's income and
operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market interest rates.

16, Creditors
30 Septermber 30 September
2024 2023
5 5
Amourits Falling due within one vear:

Amounts owed Lo group wdertakings 3929840 4,208,712
Obligations under finance leases 15,328 -
Taxation and social security 2832775 2,903 340
Accruals and deferred income 10,005,203 Q870,185
16,799,146 16,977,237

Amounis falling due after more than one year:
Obligations under finance leases 56,772 -
Accruals and deferred income 1406, 801 1,771 458
1,463,573 1,771.458

Amonmnts owed (o group undenakings are wnsecured, interest free, have no fixed date of repayment and
are repayable on demand,

The net finance lease obligation to wiich the Company 15 commuitied are;

30 Seprember 30 Seprember
2024 023
5 E
In one year or less 15442
Between one and two years 16,355 -
3,7
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17. Called up share capital

The preference shares carry no nghts to paticipate in the profits of the Company, and no voting nghts.
The Company may redeem the preference shares at par, at amy time subject to the provisions of the
Comparnes Act 2006, On redemplion, and al the discretion of the Directors, the preference shares may
be converted 1o ordinary shares of similar par value.

30 September 30 September
2024 2023
5 5

[ssued, called up and fully pail
100,010 (2023; 100,00 ord nary shares of 51 each 106010 106,010
10,950,000 {2023 10,950,000) redeemable preference 10,350,000 0,950,000

shares of 51 each

11,050,010 11,050,010

18. Other reserve

As a result of the change in ownership to Franklin Resources, Inc., the share-based award
programme under Legg Mason, Inc. restricted stock unit plan was replaced by Franklin Resources,
Inc. regrcted stock unil plan. These awards normally ves between one and four vears bul were
accelerated doe to the ownership change, with a residual amount of 543,008 recognised as an equity
transaction.,

19, Finandal commitments

The Company had the following future ninimuom lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
for each of the following periods:

30 September 30 September
2024 023
5 5

Land and buildings payments due:
Mot Inter than one vear HEE.699 1118509
Later than one year andnot later than five years 3874797 4,474,036
4,843,496 3,592,545

The Company previously ocoupied office space across multiple floors, which expired in March 2020,
Immedintely thereafler, the Company signed a 10-year lease to occupy the 11% floor, which was effective
May 2020, and under the terms of which the Company has an initial reni-free pedod to 31 May 2022,
The reni payable under the lease will be subject to review in May 2025,

Provizion for rental payable was made in the financial statements during the rent-free peniod, and this is
being released to the Statement of Income and Retained Eamings so as to spread this benefit evenly over
the period of the lease.
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20, Related party disdosures

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption available under FRS 102 paragraph 33.1 A from
disclosing transactions entered into between two or more members of a group provided that amy
subsidiary which is party to the transaction is wholly owned by such a member and the consolidated
financial staternents in which the Company is included are publicly ssalable.

2

-

. Controlling parties
The immediate parent undermtaking is Lege Mason Global Holdings Lid.

The ultimate controlling party 1= Franklin Resources, Inc., a Company incorporated and registered in the
United States of America and listed on the New York Stock Exchange.

The cnly group into which the Company s resulis are consolidated is the group that is headed by Franklin
Resources, Inc.. Copies of the consolidated financial statements of Franklin Resources, Ine. are available

from Omne Franklin Parkway, San Mateo, CA, 94403, United States,

Fusther infomiation can be foumnd on the Franklin Resources, [ne. website "www_franklinresources. com™
under "Imvestor Relations”.

22, Subsequent events

Az disclosed on page 2 of the Stralegic Repor, Western Assel Management Company, LLC. the
Company’s US-based affiliate. received notification regarding parallel investigations by TS muthorities
nto trade allocations in select Western Asset- managed accounts involving treasury denvatives, These
developments led to a material decrease in the Company's AUM since the yvear ended 30 September
2024, which decreased by USD 7.1 billion to USD 26.4 billion throngh 31 December 2024,
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Report of independent auditors

To BNY Mellon Fund Management (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as trustee of Western
Asset Bank Loan (Multi-Currency) Fund

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-
Currency) Fund (a sub-trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds) (the "Fund™), which comprise
the statement of assets and liabilities as of March 31, 2024, and the related statements of
operations and of changes in net assets for the year then ended, including the related notes
(collectively referred to as the "financial statements™).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Fund as of March 31, 2024, and the results of its
operations and changes in its net assets for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America (US GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditors®™ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Fund and to meet our other
ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to
our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the
Fund®s ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the date the financial
statements are available to be issued.
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Auditors”® responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditors” report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with US GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the
financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund"s internal control. Accordingly,
no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Fund®s ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain
internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

May 23, 2024
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Report of independent auditors

To BNY Mellon Fund Management (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as trustee of Western
Asset Bank Loan (Multi-Currency) Fund

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-
Currency) Fund (a sub-trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds) (the "Fund™), which comprise
the statement of assets and liabilities as of March 31, 2025, and the related statements of
operations and of changes in net assets for the year then ended, including the related notes
(collectively referred to as the "financial statements™).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Fund as of March 31, 2025, and the results of its
operations and changes in its net assets for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America (US GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditors®™ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Fund and to meet our other
ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to
our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the
Fund®s ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the date the financial
statements are available to be issued.

272/281



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000DO000DO00nnoE24736)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Auditors”® responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditors” report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with US GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the
financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund"s internal control. Accordingly,
no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Fund®s ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain
internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

May 22, 2025
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Independent auditors®™ report to the members of Western Asset Management Company Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion
In our opinion, Western Asset Management Company Limited"s financial statements:

give a true and fair view of the state of the Company"s affairs as at 30 September 2024
and of its profit for the year then ended;

have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 102 ““The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland””, and
applicable law); and

have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual report and financial
statements (the ““Annual Report””), which comprise: the Statement of financial position as
at 30 September 2024; the Statement of income and retained earnings for the year then ended;
and the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the significant
accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (““ISAs
(UK)>*) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under 1SAs (UK) are further described in
the Auditors® responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our
report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC~”s
Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant
doubt on the Company"s ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least

twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Directors™ use of the going
concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion is
not a guarantee as to the Company"s ability to continue as a going concern.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Directors with respect to going concern
are described in the relevant sections of this report.
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Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the
financial statements and our auditors® report thereon. The Directors are responsible for the
other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. ITf we identify an apparent material
inconsistency or material misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude
whether there is a material misstatement of the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic Report and Directors® Report, we also considered whether the
disclosures required by the UK Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the Companies Act 2006 requires us
also to report certain opinions and matters as described below.

Strategic Report and Directors®™ Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information
given in the Strategic Report and Directors® Report for the year ended 30 September 2024 is
consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in accordance with applicable
legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the Company and its environment obtained in
the course of the audit, we did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic
Report and Directors™ Report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Responsibilities of the Directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors® responsibilities in respect of the
financial statements, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they
give a true and fair view. The Directors are also responsible for such internal control as
they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company”s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either
intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.
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Auditors® responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditors” report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations.
We design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material
misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our
procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below.

Based on our understanding of the Company and industry, we identified that the principal
risks of non-compliance with laws and regulations related to breaches of UK regulatory
principles, such as those governed by the Financial Conduct Authority, and we considered the
extent to which non-compliance might have a material effect on the financial statements. We
also considered those laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the financial
statements such as the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. We evaluated management®s
incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements
(including the risk of override of controls), and determined that the principal risks were
related to posting inappropriate journal entries to revenue. Audit procedures performed by
the engagement team included:

Enquiries with management, including consideration of known or suspected instances of
fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations;

Reviewing relevant Board meeting minutes;

Reviewing correspondence with the Financial Conduct Authority in relation to compliance
with laws and regulations;

Understanding of management®s internal controls designed to prevent and detect
irregularities;

Challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in their consideration of
significant accounting estimates;

Identifying and testing journal entries, in particular any journal posted with unusual
account combinations; where any such journal entries were identified; and

Designing audit procedures to incorporate unpredictability around the nature, timing or
extent of our testing.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above. We are less likely
to become aware of instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations that are not
closely related to events and transactions reflected in the financial statements. Also, the
risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not
detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for
example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is

located on the FRC"s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description
forms part of our auditors® report.
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Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Company®s
members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for
no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for
any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it
may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Other required reporting
Companies Act 2006 exception reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:
we have not obtained all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or
adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company, or returns adequate for
our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
certain disclosures of Directors® remuneration specified by law are not made; or
the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Stefanie Hinnenkamp (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Edinburgh

Date: 15 January 2025
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